
İHLAS EV ALETLERİ ANNUAL REPORT 201255

İHLAS EV ALETLERİ
İMALAT SANAYİ VE TİCARET 

ANONİM ŞİRKETİ

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND FOOTNOTES

for Jan 1 - Dec 31, 2012



İHLAS EV ALETLERİ ANNUAL REPORT 201256

Independent Audit Report
for the Fiscal Year 2012

Ihlas Ev Aletleri Imalat Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. Board of Directors 

We have examined the consolidated financial statement (balance sheet), the consolidated income statement, the consolidated 
equity adjustment statement, the consolidated cash flow statement, summary of material accounting policies, and footnotes of 
Ihlas Ev Aletleri Imalat Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. (“Company” or “Group”) for the period ending on December 31, 2012.

Company Executives’ Responsibilities Regarding the Financial Statements
The Company’s executives are responsible for ensuring that the financial statements are prepared according to the financial report-
ing standards published by the Capital Markets Board (CMB) and that they are presented accurately. This obligation includes ensur-
ing that the financial statements do not contain material errors resulting from inaccuracies, fraud or irregularities. Moreover, the 
responsibilities also comprise designing, implementing, and sustaining necessary internal control systems, making the necessary 
accounting estimates as required, and selecting the appropriate accounting policies in order to ensure that the financial statements 
are complete and correct.

Responsibilities of the Independent Auditing Firm
We are obliged to provide opinions on these financial statements based on the independent audit that we conduct. Our independent 
audit complies with the independent auditing standards published by the Capital Markets Board. These standards require compli-
ance with ethical principles and planning in the execution of independent audits in a manner that provides reasonable assurance 
about the unquestioned accuracy of these financial statements. 

Our independent audit consists of using independent auditing techniques to substantiate the amounts reflected in the financial 
statements and the footnotes. The independent auditing techniques that we use were selected based on our professional opinion 
in that they include a risk evaluation of the financial statements to identify whether any material errors exist and whether these 
are due to inaccuracies, fraud or irregularities, taking the Company’s internal control system into consideration. The Company’s 
internal Control System has into Consideration at this risk evaluation. However, that is not to say that we necessarily intend to 
provide feedback regarding the efficacy of the internal control system. Instead, we aim to determine the relationship between the 
internal control system and the financial statements compiled by the Company’s management in order to devise independent au-
diting techniques that suit the conditions. Moreover, our independent audit includes the evaluation of the applicability and unity of the 
financial statements and material accounting estimates accomplished through accounting policies adhered to by the Company’s 
management.

We, therefore, maintain that the independent auditing techniques used to substantiate the findings of the independent audit are 
sufficient as a basis of our opinions.

Independent Audit Report of İhlas Ev Aletleri İmalat Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.
for the January 1 - December 31, 2012 Fiscal Year 
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Independent Audit Report
for the Fiscal Year 2012

Opinion
In our opinion, the attached consolidated financial statements accurately reflect the financial status of Ihlas Ev Aletleri İmalat Sanayi 
ve Ticaret A.Ş., as of December 31, 2008, and the company’s cash flow for the period ending December 31, 2008, in compliance with 
the financial reporting standards published by the Capital Markets Board.
We would like to draw attention to the following, although they have no bearing on our focus:
Although not affecting our opinion, we would like to point out that the Company’s consolidated financial statements from the previ-
ous year, presented in comparison with the consolidated financial statements dated December 31, 2012, were examined by another 
independent auditing company, which has issued a positive opinion for these consolidated financial statements.

Istanbul, March 7, 2013
İRFAN BAĞIMSIZ DENETİM ve 
YEMİNLİ MALİ MÜŞAVİRLİK A.Ş.
					   
Hayati ÇİFTLİK
Lead Auditor, Responsible Partner
Sworn-in Financial Advisor

Independent Audit Report of İhlas Ev Aletleri İmalat Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.
for the January 1 - December 31, 2012 Fiscal Year 
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Consolidated Financial Statements
Consolidated Financial Statements (Balance Sheets) as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011

Unless otherwise stated, the amounts are in Turkish lira (TL)

İhlas Ev Aletleri İmalat Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.

Based on Independent Audit

Footnote
References

Audited
31.12.2012

Audited
31.12.2011 

ASSETS      

Current Assets 209.417.001 164.268.072 

   Cash and Cash Equivalents 6 1.533.382 470.744 

   Financial Investments 7 87.258.985 43.631.358 

   Trade Receivables 10 63.744.451 63.808.556 

   -Trade Receivables from Related Parties 10 13.951.131 2.947.757 

   - Other Trade Receivables 10 49.793.320 60.860.799 

   Financial Receivables 12 0 0 

   Other Receivables 11 12.343.662 899.109 

   -Other Receivables from Related Parties 11 12.094.803 - 

   - Other Receivables 11 248.859 899.109

   Inventories 13 36.392.419 40.909.003 

   Live Assets 14 0 0 

   Other Current Assets 26 8.144.102 14.549.302 

   (Sub Total) 209.417.001 164.268.072 

   Held-for-Sale Fixed Assets 34 0 0 

Fixed Assets 94.805.697 121.534.743

   Trade Receivables 10 0 0 

   Financial Receivables 12 0 0 

   Other Receivables 11 245.031 231.262 

   Financial Investments 7 1.470.663 1.364.959 

   Investments Appraised using the Equity Method of Accounting 16 0 0 

   Live Assets 14 0 0 

   Investment Properties 17 37.359.741 59.108.783 

   Tangible Fixed Assets 18 5.179.618 4.357.900 

   Intangible Fixed Assets 19 5.786.175 5.312.081 

   Goodwill 20 37.720.505 39.923.002 

   Deferred Tax Asset 35 7.007.113 11.180.443 

   Other Fixed Assets 26 36.851 56.313 

TOTAL ASSETS 304.222.698 285.802.815 

The attached footnotes augment the consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Financial Statements
Consolidated Financial Statements (Balance Sheets) as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011

Unless otherwise stated, the amounts are in Turkish lira (TL)

İhlas Ev Aletleri İmalat Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.

Based on Independent Audit

Footnote
References

Audited
31.12.2012

Audited
31.12.2011

EQUITIES  

Short-Term Liabilities 78.498.510 75.161.693 

   Financial Liabilities 8 0 61.377 

   Other Financial Liabilities 9 39.342.259 28.899.098 

   Trade Payables 10 34.113.503 41.996.402 

   -Related Party Payables 10 686.246 591.036 

   - Other Trade Payables 10 33.427.257 41.405.366 

   Other Payables 11 12.400 0 

   Financial Payables 12 0 0 

   Government Incentives and Aid 21 0 0 

   Year-end Profit Tax Liabilities 35 0 0 

   Provisions for Payables 22-23 0 0 

   Other Short-Term Liabilities 26 5.030.348 4.204.816 

   (Sub Total) 78.498.510 75.161.693 

   Held-for-Sale Fixed Asset

   Liabilities 34 0 0

Long-Term Liabilities 7.597.489 7.186.012  

   Financial Liabilities 8 0 0 

   Other Financial Liabilities 9 0 0 

   Trade Payables 10 0 0 

   Other Payables 11 0 0 

   Financial Payables 12 0 0 

   Government Incentives and Aid 21 0 0 

   Provisions for Payables 22-23 781.053 1.065.584 

   Reserves Related to Benefits Provided to Employees 24 2.539.085 1.897.987 

   Deferred Tax Liability 35 3.671.262 1.876.035 

   Other Long-Term Liabilities 26 606.089 2.346.406 
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Consolidated Financial Statements
Consolidated Financial Statements (Balance Sheets) as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011

Unless otherwise stated, the amounts are in Turkish lira (TL)

İhlas Ev Aletleri İmalat Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.

EQUITIES 218.126.699 203.455.110 

Equities Belonging to the Parent Company 201.040.730 181.978.538 

   Issued Capital 27 191.370.001 191.370.001 

   Cross-Ownership Capital Adjustments (-) 27 0 0 

   Share Premiums 27 6.534.581 6.534.581 

   Other Equity Reserves 27 4.890.469 4.890.469

   Growth Funds 27 0 0 

   Currency Exchange Differences 27 0 0 

   Restricted Reserves from Profits 27 2.865.403 1.887.847 

   Profit/(Loss) from Previous Years 27 (24.911.772) 3.467.180 

   Net Current Profit/(Loss) 36 20.292.048 (26.171.540)

Minority Shares 27 17.085.969 21.476.572 

TOTAL RESOURCES 304.222.698 285.802.815 

The attached footnotes augment the consolidated financial statements.

Based on Independent Audit

Footnote
References

Audited
31.12.2012

Audited
31.12.2011
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Consolidated Comprehensive Income Statements
January 1 - December 31, 2012 and January 1 - December 31, 2011 Consolidated Comprehensive Income Statements

Unless otherwise stated, the amounts are in Turkish lira (TL)

İhlas Ev Aletleri İmalat Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.

Based on Independent Audit

Footnote
References

Audited
01.01.2012-  
31.12.2012

Audited
01.01.2011-  
31.12.2011

CONTINUED ACTIVITIES

Sales Income 28 101.540.360 99.508.540 

Cost of Sales (-) 28 (90.272.373) (92.807.844)

Gross Profit/(Loss) from Trade Activities 11.267.987 6.700.696 

Interests, Fees, Premiums, Commissions, and Other Income 28 0 0 

Interests, Fees, Premiums, Commissions, and Other Costs (-) 28 0 0 

Gross Profit/(Loss) from Financial Activities 0 0 

GROSS PROFIT/(LOSS) 11.267.987 6.700.696 

Marketing, Sales, and Distribution Costs (-) 29 (2.564.585) (2.385.887)

Administrative Costs (-) 29 (9.313.044) (9.655.228)

Research and Development Costs (-) 29 (1.230.119) (1.032.997)

Other Operating Income 31 43.265.008 12.983.376 

Other Operating Costs (-) 31 (12.571.495) (34.357.930)

OPERATING PROFIT / (LOSS) 28.853.752 (27.747.970)

Amount of Investment Appraisal through Equity Management in Profit/Loss 0 0 

Financial Income 32 14.166.108 11.338.316 

Financial Costs (-) 33 (19.420.020) (15.633.495)

CONTINUING OPERATIONS PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXES 23.599.840 (32.043.149)

 Continuing Operations Tax Income/ (Expense) (5.968.557) 6.118.783 

- Current Tax Income/(Costs) 35 0 0 

- Deferred Tax Income/(Costs) (-) 35 (5.968.557) 6.118.783 

CONTINUING OPERATIONS PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD 17.631.283 (25.924.366)

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 0 0 

Discontinued Operations Profit/(Loss) After Taxes 0 0 

CURRENT PROFIT / (LOSS) 17.631.283 (25.924.366)

Distribution of Current Profit/Loss 17.631.283 (25.924.366)

Minority Shares 36 (2.660.765) 247.174 

Parent Company Shares 36 20.292.048 (26.171.540)

Earnings per Share (in Kurus) 36 0,106 (0,137)

Diluted Earnings per Share (in Kurus) 36 0,106 (0,137)

Earnings per Share from Continuing Operations (in Kurus) 36 0,106 (0,137)

Diluted Earnings per Share from Continuing Operations (in Kurus) 36 0,106 (0,137)
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Consolidated Comprehensive Income Statements
January 1 - December 31, 2012 and January 1 - December 31, 2011 Consolidated Comprehensive Income Statements

Unless otherwise stated, the amounts are in Turkish lira (TL)

İhlas Ev Aletleri İmalat Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.

Based on Independent Audit

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME STATEMENT
Footnote

References

Audited
01.01.2012-  
31.12.2012

Audited
01.01.2011-  
31.12.2011

CURRENT PROFIT / (LOSS) 36 17.631.283 (25.924.366)

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 0 (1.984.217)

Change in Financial Assets Growth Funds 0 (1.984.217)

Change in Fixed Assets Growth Funds 0 0 

Change in Hedge Funds 0 0 

Change in Currency Exchange Differences 0 0 

Actuarial Profits and Losses from Retirement Benefit Plans 0 0 

Shares in Other Comprehensive Incomes from Partnerships Appraised using the Equity Method of Accounting 0 0 

Tax Income/Expenses Related with Other Comprehensive Income Items 0 0 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (AFTER TAXES) 17.631.283 (27.908.583)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 17.631.283 (27.908.583)

Distribution of Total Comprehensive Income

Minority Shares (2.660.765) 247.174

Parent Company Shares 20.292.048 (28.155.757)

The attached footnotes augment the consolidated financial statements. 
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Consolidated Equity Adjustment Statements
January 1 - December 31, 2012 and January 1 - December 31, 2011 Consolidated Equity Adjustment Statements

Unless otherwise stated, the amounts are in Turkish lira (TL)

İhlas Ev Aletleri İmalat Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.

 
Footnote 

References
Issued Capital

Share 
Premiums

Other Equity 
Reserves

Restricted 
Reserves 

Derived from 
the Profit

Net Current
Profit / (Loss)

Profit/(Loss) 
from Previous 

Years
Minority Shares Total

January 1, 2012 191.370.001 6.534.581 4.890.469 1.887.847  (26.171.540) 3.467.180 21.476.572 203.455.110

New Mergers and Effective Share Adjustments 27 0 0 0 936.433 0 (2.207.412) (1.729.838) (3.000.817)

Adjustment in Special Reserves 27 0 0 0 41.123 0 0 0 41.123

Transfers 27 0 0 0 0 26.171.540 (26.171.540) 0 0 

Current Net Profit/(Loss) 36 0 0 0 0 20.292.048 0 (2.660.765) 17.631.283

December 31, 2012 191.370.001 6.534.581 4.890.469 2.865.403 20.292.048 (24.911.772) 17.085.969 218.126.699

 
Footnote 

References
Issued Capital

Share 
Premiums

Revaluation of 
Financial Fixed 

Assets

Other Equity 
Reserves

Restricted 
Reserves 

Derived from 
the Profit

Net Current
Profit / (Loss)

Profit/(Loss) 
from Previous 

Years
Minority Shares Total

January 1, 2012   191.370.001 6.534.581 1.984.217 0 1.680.909 9.217.632 (5.874.327) 26.574.616 231.487.629 

Changes in Revaluation of Financial Fixed Assets 27 0 0 (1.984.217) 0 0 0 0 0 (1.984.217) 

Additional Equity Contribution Related to the Merger 3-27 0 0 0 4.890.469 0 0 0 2.966.089 7.856.558 

Changes in Reserves Derived from Profit 27 0 0 0 0 206.938  0 (206.938) 0 0 

Effective Share Adjustments 27 0 0 0 0 0 0 330.813 (8.311.307) (7.980.494)

Transfers 27 0 0 0 0 0 (9.217.632) 9.217.632 0 0 

Current Net Profit/(Loss) 36 0 0 0 0 0 (26.171.540) 0 247.174 (25.924.366)

December 31, 2011   191.370.001 6.534.581 0 4.890.469 1.887.847  (26.171.540)  (3.467.180) 21.476.572 203.455.110

The attached footnotes augment the consolidated financial statements. 
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Footnote 

References
Issued Capital

Share 
Premiums

Other Equity 
Reserves

Restricted 
Reserves 

Derived from 
the Profit

Net Current
Profit / (Loss)

Profit/(Loss) 
from Previous 

Years
Minority Shares Total

January 1, 2012 191.370.001 6.534.581 4.890.469 1.887.847  (26.171.540) 3.467.180 21.476.572 203.455.110

New Mergers and Effective Share Adjustments 27 0 0 0 936.433 0 (2.207.412) (1.729.838) (3.000.817)

Adjustment in Special Reserves 27 0 0 0 41.123 0 0 0 41.123

Transfers 27 0 0 0 0 26.171.540 (26.171.540) 0 0 

Current Net Profit/(Loss) 36 0 0 0 0 20.292.048 0 (2.660.765) 17.631.283

December 31, 2012 191.370.001 6.534.581 4.890.469 2.865.403 20.292.048 (24.911.772) 17.085.969 218.126.699

 
Footnote 

References
Issued Capital

Share 
Premiums

Revaluation of 
Financial Fixed 

Assets

Other Equity 
Reserves

Restricted 
Reserves 

Derived from 
the Profit

Net Current
Profit / (Loss)

Profit/(Loss) 
from Previous 

Years
Minority Shares Total

January 1, 2012   191.370.001 6.534.581 1.984.217 0 1.680.909 9.217.632 (5.874.327) 26.574.616 231.487.629 

Changes in Revaluation of Financial Fixed Assets 27 0 0 (1.984.217) 0 0 0 0 0 (1.984.217) 

Additional Equity Contribution Related to the Merger 3-27 0 0 0 4.890.469 0 0 0 2.966.089 7.856.558 

Changes in Reserves Derived from Profit 27 0 0 0 0 206.938  0 (206.938) 0 0 

Effective Share Adjustments 27 0 0 0 0 0 0 330.813 (8.311.307) (7.980.494)

Transfers 27 0 0 0 0 0 (9.217.632) 9.217.632 0 0 

Current Net Profit/(Loss) 36 0 0 0 0 0 (26.171.540) 0 247.174 (25.924.366)

December 31, 2011   191.370.001 6.534.581 0 4.890.469 1.887.847  (26.171.540)  (3.467.180) 21.476.572 203.455.110

The attached footnotes augment the consolidated financial statements. 
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Based on Independent Audit

 
 

Footnote 
References

Audited
31.12.2012

Audited
31.12.2011

Cash flow from Business Activities

Current Net Profit/(Loss) 36 20.292.048 (26.171.540)

Reconciliation of Cash from Business Activities and Net Profit

Depreciation 18 1.611.157 1.515.966

Amortization and Depletion Shares 19 86.417 231.837

Termination Benefit Provisions 30 807.393 978.452

Terminated Warranty Provisions 31 (270.811) (1.070.367)

Tax 35 5.968.557 (6.118.783)

Non-Parent Profit/(Loss) 36 (2.660.765) 247.174

Tax costs in scope of Law no 6111 31 - 963.143

Financial Income 32 (1.643.184) (2.132.137)

Financial Costs 33 9.764.195 3.576.019

Goodwill Impairment Provisions 31 2.202.497 1.807.346

Long-term Financial Investment Impairment Provisions 31 32.802 177.375

Canceled Long-term Financial Investment Impairment Provisions 31 (148.506) -

Investment Properties Impairment Provisions 31 806.616 874.234

Net Securities Sales Profit/(Loss) 31 1.957.502 (777.019)

Terminated Lawsuit Provisions 31 (13.720) (1.678)

Other Terminated Provisions 31 (303.801) (151.753)

Revaluation Surplus of Financial Assets - (1.984.217)

Other Net Costs/(Income) Requiring No Cash Outflow/(Inflow) 433.429 (237.071)

Net Operating Profit Before Receivable and Payable Adjustments  38.921.826 (28.273.019)

Receivables and Payables Adjustments

Financing Investments Adjustments 7 (43.733.331) (15.626.585)

Related Party Receivables Adjustments 10 (11.003.374) 27.154.210

Other Trade Receivables Adjustments 10 11.067.479 (34.884.172)

Other Receivables Adjustments 11 636.481 405.448

Related Party Other Receivables Adjustments 11 (12.094.803) -

Inventory Adjustments 13 4.516.584 (15.399.252)

Other Current Asset Adjustments 6.523.158 8.130.141

Other Fixed Asset Adjustments 26 19.462 20.981.980

Related Party Payables Adjustments (9.721.698) (453.323)

Consolidated Cash Flow Statements
January 1 - December 31, 2012 and January 1 - December 31, 2011 Consolidated Cash Flow Statements

Unless otherwise stated, the amounts are in Turkish lira (TL)

İhlas Ev Aletleri İmalat Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.
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Based on Independent Audit

 
 

Footnote 
References

Audited
31.12.2012

Audited
31.12.2011

Other Trade Payables Adjustments (1.080.206) 20.246.594

Other Short-term and Long-term Payables Adjustments (1.143.712) (3.687.263)

Termination Benefits Paid 24 (166.295) (172.728)

Net Cash from Business Activities (A)  (17.258.429) (21.577.969)

Investment Activities

Tangible Asset Purchases 17,18 (2.443.556) (21.950.562)

Intangible Asset Purchases 19 (560.510) (4.751.479)

Cash from Sold Tangible Assets 19.012.179 45.016

Net Cash from Investments (B)  16.008.113 (26.657.025)

Financial Activities

Received Interest 32 1.643.184 2.132.137

Paid Interest 33 (9.764.195) (3.576.019)

Financial Liabilities Adjustments 8 (61.377) (11.495.861)

Other Financial Liability Adjustments 9 10.443.161 21.461.698

Net Cash for Financial Activities (C)  2.260.773 8.521.955

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalent Assets (D = A + B + C) 1.010.457 (39.713.039)

Opening Balance for Cash and Cash Equivalent Assets (E) 470.744 40.183.783

Opening Existing Cash from Mergers (F) 3 52.181 -

Closing Balance for Cash and Cash Equivalent Assets (G = D+E+F) 6 1.533.382 470.744

The attached footnotes augment the consolidated financial statements.

Consolidated Cash Flow Statements
January 1 - December 31, 2012 and January 1 - December 31, 2011 Consolidated Cash Flow Statements

Unless otherwise stated, the amounts are in Turkish lira (TL)

İhlas Ev Aletleri İmalat Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.
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Note 1 - Organization and Area of Activity of the Company
Ihlas ve Aletleri Imalat Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. (“Company”) is Merkez Mahallesi, 29 Ekim Cad., İhlas Plaza, No: 11 B/21 Yenibosna – 
Bahçelievler, ISTANBUL, with Tax No. 470 007 3778 of the Marmara Corporate Tax Department. The Company manufactures home 
appliances in two plants: one located at Istanbul Beylikdüzü, Mermerciler Sanayi Sitesi 7. Cd. No: 12 and the other located at Istanbul 
Beylikdüzü, Mermerciler Sanayi Sitesi 2. Bulvar No: 11.  Also, the Company has a warehouse located in Hastane Mah. Hadımköy 
Nakkaş Yolu Cad. No:21 Arnavutköy / Istanbul.
The Company conducts manufacturing operations in seven facilities: one administrative building and six production facilities. The 
production facilities consist of a cleaning robot plant, a water heater and water treatment plant, a plastic injection plant, an electric 
room heater plant, a carpet cleaner plant, and a carbon filling plant with a total of 21,075-square meter enclosed area. 
The Company is registered with the Istanbul Chamber of Commerce and the Istanbul Chamber of Industry under Registry Nos. 
135455 and 17984, respectively. The June 3, 2010, dated Capacity Report (No. 2010-1447), which the Company obtained from the 
Istanbul Chamber of Industry, is valid until June 08, 2013.
The Group’s average number of employees during the annual reporting period is shown in the table below.

Number of Personnel
31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Administrators Laborers Administrators Laborers

Parent Company 92 193 85 200

Subsidiaries 9 46 13 45

TOTAL 101 239 98 245

The Company’s shareholding structure is depicted in the table below. 

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Title Share (%) Share Amount Share (%) Share Amount

Ihlas Pazarlama Yatırım Holding A.Ş. (1) 17,60 33.681.000 17,60 33.681.000

Ihlas Holding A.Ş. (1) (2) 7,32 14.000.000 7,32 14.000.000

Open to the Public 74,83 143.205.723 74,83 143.205.723

Other 0,25 483.278 0,25 483.278

Total 100,00 191.370.001 100,00 191.370.001

(1) Real and legal entities that own the capital indirectly: 
 31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Title Share (%) Share Amount Share (%) Share Amount

Enver Ören (3) 2,48 4.731.793 2,69 5.145.605

Open to the Public 20,68 39.581.890 19,95 38.171.510

Other 1,76 3.367.317 2,28 4.363.885

TOTAL 24,92 47.681.000 24,92 47.681.000

(2)  The Parent Company of the Group, Ihlas Holding A.Ş., issued a lot of 8,000,000 (4.18 percent) company shares to Lehman Broth-
ers as a deposit according to an options contract ending on July 24, 2009. Research and analyses conducted by Ihlas Holding A.Ş. 

Footnotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Footnotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 31, 2012

Unless otherwise stated, the amounts are in Turkish lira (TL)

İhlas Ev Aletleri İmalat Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.
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revealed that Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc., New York, filed for bankruptcy and that the options contract of Ihlas Holding A.Ş. with 
Lehman Brothers Finance S.A. was in a state of insolvency. Accordingly, Ihlas Holding A.Ş. officially initiated the process for the 
return of the lot of 8,000,000 company shares (IHEVA) issued to Lehman Brothers Finance S.A. as a deposit on November 28, 2008. 
The Parent Company of the Group, Ihlas Holding A.Ş., filed for an interim court injunction on the 8,000,000-share deposit to prevent 
any possible risks; the court granted an interim injunction on March 6, 2009. Following the injunction request, within the allowed 
time frame, on March 13, 2009, Ihlas Holding A.Ş. filed for the return of the deposit shares, or for the payment of the value of the 
shares on the date of return if unable to do so.  The case has ended on April 16, 2012; and the mentioned shares have been returned 
to Ihlas Holding A.Ş. 
The Company’s shareholders elect two, three, or four of the Members of the Board of Directors, depending on whether the Board 
consists of three, five, or seven members, respectively, from the candidates nominated by shareholders from Group A. The Compa-
ny’s shareholders elect one or two of the auditors, depending on whether the shareholders choose to appoint one or three auditors, 
respectively, from the candidates nominated by the shareholders from Group A. The other auditor is elected by the shareholders 
from among the nominated shareholders present at the General Shareholders Meeting.
(3) Enver Ören, one of the indirect shareholders of the Company, has passed away since the date of the balance sheet. The indirect 
shareholder structure has not yet been clarified as of the date of the report.
The Company Board of Directors has applied to CMB on February 14, 2013 regarding the amendment of the Articles of Association 
in order to comply with the Turkish Commercial Code No. 6102. Details regarding this issue can be found in Note 40.
The distribution of the Company’s preferred shares (Group A shares) is as follows:

Partner Name / Title Series Group Bearer/ Registered Number of Shares AMOUNT Rights

İhlas Pazarlama Yatırım Holding A.Ş. I A Hamiline 4.049.920 40.499
Elect Majority of the Members 
of the Board of Directors and 

Board of Auditors

Ahmet Mücahid Ören I A Hamiline 647.040 6.470
Elect Majority of the Members 
of the Board of Directors and 

Board of Auditors

Ali Tubay Gölbaşı I A Hamiline 156.180 1.562
Elect Majority of the Members 
of the Board of Directors and 

Board of Auditors

Subsidiaries Included in the Consolidation (Based on Effective Rate)
1- Ihlas Madencilik A.Ş. (Ihlas Madencilik): The company engages in mining operations.
2- Mir Maden İşletmeciliği Enerji ve Kimya San. Tic. Ltd. Şti. (Mir Maden): The company engages in mining, chemicals, and energy 
operations. It has merged with Ihlas Kimya San. Ltd. Şti during the current fiscal year.  Ltd. Şti. ile birleşme olmuştur.
3- Detes Enerji Üretim A.Ş.(Detes Enerji): The company engages in establishing, operating, or leasing out power generation plants, 
generating electric power, and selling this electric power and/or capacity to customers.

Not 2 - Principles Regarding the Presentation of Financial Statements
A. Fundamental Presentation Principles
Compliance Statement
The Company keeps accounting records and prepares legal financial statements according to the Uniform Charts of Accounts, Turk-
ish Commercial Law, Turkish Tax Legislation, and the accepted accounting policies published by the Capital Markets Board (CMB) for 
companies listed on the Istanbul Stock Exchange (ISE). 
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The CMB has outlined the principles and methods used for preparing financial reports to be presented to relevant parties in the 
Communiqué on Principles Regarding Financial Reporting in Capital Markets (Serial XI, No: 29). This Communiqué became effective 
as of the first interim financial statements after January 1, 2008 and the Communiqué on Accounting Standards in Capital Markets 
(Serial XI, No: 25) of the CMB was rescinded. As per Communiqué with Serial XI, No: 29, companies are to comply with the Inter-
national Accounting Standards/International Financial Reporting Standards (IAS/IFRS), as accepted by the European Union, and 
to state the compliance of their financial statements with IAS/IFRS, as accepted by the European Union, in the financial statement 
footnotes. Moreover, the financial reports and accounting records are also projected using the Turkish Accounting Standards (TAS) 
and Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (TFRS) published by the Turkish Accounting Standards Board (TASB), whose standards 
are in line with those already adopted. (In November 2011, TASB was closed and all responsibilities were transferred to the Public 
Oversight Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority) However, in the interim, until the Public Oversight Accounting and Auditing 
Standards Authority (formerly TASB) announces and reconciles any differences between the IAS/IFRS accepted by the European 
Union and those published by the International Accounting Standards Board, the IAS and IFRS will apply. 
The Company’s attached consolidated financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the Capital Markets Board Com-
muniqué Serial XI, No. 29; these financial statements and footnotes are, therefore, presented according to the format requirements 
of the CMB, as announced on April 14, 2008.
Moreover, any corrections or reclassifications in the statutory accounting records to allow fair value measurement and presentation, 
as required by IFRS, are currently being prepared.

Related Parties
IAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures Standard”, states that parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control 
the other party or to exercise significant influence or joint control over the other party directly or indirectly, including through share-
holding, contractual benefits, and familial relations. Furthermore, related parties include investors and company management. 
Related party transactions consist of the transfer of assets, services, or liabilities between related parties, regardless of whether a 
fee is applicable.
Segmented as “related parties” for purposes of the financial statements are shareholders of the Company, the group companies in 
indirect capital relationships with the Company, members of the Board of Directors, executive managers, and other key management 
personnel. Key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing, and controlling 
the activities of the entity, directly or indirectly, including all directors, whether executive or otherwise (Note 37).
Due to ordinary activities, related party transactions have generally been performed at prices compatible with market conditions.

Basis of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Ihlas Ev Aletleri Imalat San. ve Tic. A.Ş., the Parent Company, and 
subsidiaries such as Ihlas Madencilik, Detes Enerji, and Mir Maden(all together referred to as the “Group”). 
Subsidiaries are included in the consolidation as of the date the control is transferred to the Group; and are taken out of the sub-
sidiaries consolidated at the date the control leaves the Group. The Group’s consolidated financial statements includes subsidiaries, 
which are companies where the parent company has either the power to use the majority of the parent company’s voting rights, 
directly or indirectly, according to the parent company’s shares in the subsidiary company or the power and authority to control the 
business and financial policies of the subsidiary company for the parent company’s own benefit without having the power to use the 
majority of the parent company’s voting rights.
Subsidiaries have been consolidated as per the full consolidation method; thus, the recorded values for subsidiaries have been 
netted in light of their relevant equities. Equities and net current profits assigned to the beneficiaries of the subsidiaries outside 
the parent company are shown as minority shares in the consolidated balance sheet and consolidated comprehensive income 
statement.
The Group evaluates the activities of selling and buying the shares of subsidiaries that are under its control with minorities as a 
method of extending the parent company. Therefore, the difference between the subsidiary’s share purchased based on the recorded 
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net value of its assets and the cost of acquisition within the scope of buying and selling transactions of shares outside the parent 
company is accounted into equity. In other words, the changes in the parent company’s shares of the subsidiary, given there is no 
loss of control, are recorded as equity transactions.
Balances and transactions between Group companies, including inter-company profits and unrealized profits and losses have been 
eliminated. Similar accounting principles have been used for similar events and transactions in the consolidated financial state-
ments. In the event of having more than 20 percent but less than 50 percent of voting rights of the company invested in, either 
directly or indirectly, and unless otherwise proven, the transaction is considered as having a significant effect and the company 
invested in is accepted as a subsidiary.

Subsidiaries Included in the Consolidation (Based on Effective Rate)

Company Title Share (%)

Ihlas Madencilik %62,25

Detes Enerji %99,84 

Mir Maden %51,50

As per IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”, subsidiaries and associations that bear no major significance 
on the consolidated financial statements, whose fair values cannot be reliably determined since they are not traded on recognized 
stock markets, as well as long-term securities traded on recognized stock markets, and where the Group has no significant effect, 
have been classified as ready-to-sell financial assets and have been recognized as such. Shares and titles of related companies are 
as depicted below.

Subsidiaries, Associations, and Long-Term Securities Not Included in Consolidation (Based on effective rate)

Company Title Share (%)

İhlas Mining Ltd. Şti. (İhlas Mining) %56,02

Ihlas Gazetecilik A.Ş. %1,03

Comparative Information and Adjustments to the Financial Statements from the Previous Year
The Company’s consolidated financial statements are prepared compared to the previous year in an effort to identify financial condi-
tions and performance trends. As presentation or classification of items in the financial statement changes, those statements from 
the previous year are also changed and re-segmented, accordingly, so the two statements are comparable. 
Because some of the items calculated in the comprehensive income statement have been reclassified for the statement dated 
01.01-31.12.2011, the Company’s comprehensive income statements for previous year has been reclassified. Details regarding this 
reclassification have been outlined in Note 41.
In the event the Group applies an accounting policy retrospectively or a company adjusts or reclassifies items in its financial state-
ments retrospectively, footnotes for the financial statement (balance sheet) for at least three periods and footnotes for other state-
ments (comprehensive income statement, cash flow statement, and equity adjustment statement) for at least two periods must be 
presented. 
The Group presents financial statements for each reporting period mentioned below:

• As of the end of current annual reporting period
• As of the end of the previous annual reporting period 
• As of the beginning of the most recent comparative annual reporting period
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Statement regarding Inflation Accounting and Reporting Currency
As per the decision dated March 17, 2005, the CMB announced that effective January 1, 2005, companies who operate in the Turkish 
market and prepare financial statements according to the CMB Financial Reporting Standards do not need to apply inflation ac-
counting. Hence, IAS 29, “Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies” standard, published by the IASC, was not applied in 
the consolidated financial statements dated December 31, 2012, effective as of January 1, 2005.
Consolidated financial statements dated December 31, 2012, and those from previous periods to be used for comparative purposes, 
were prepared in Turkish lira (TL).
Pursuant to IAS 21, “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates”, foreign currency transactions have been recorded as func-
tional currency by applying the spot exchange rate between the relevant foreign currency and the functional currency at the date of 
transaction.
31 Aralık 2012 ve 31 Aralık 2011 tarihleri itibariyle T.C. The closing foreign currency exchange rates announced by the Central Bank 

of Turkey as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, are shown in the table below.

Foreign Exchange Rates (TL/Foreign Currency)

Currency 31.12.2012 31.12.2011

USD 1,7826 1,8889

EURO 2,3517 2,4438

GBP 2,8708 2,9170

CHF 1,9430 2,0062

Offsetting
To the extent allowed by the standards or notes, the receivables - payables and income-expenses have not been offset. Assets and 
liabilities are shown in net where legal and the assets and liabilities in question are intended to be assessed as net values if the as-
sets are acquired simultaneously with liabilities being met. Offsetting does not pertain to showing assets after deducting regulatory 
accounts, such as inventory impairment provisions and doubtful payables provisions.

B. Changes in Accounting Policies
Companies must have the ability to compare financial statements over time in order for the users to be able to identify the financial 
status, performance, and cash flow trends of a business. Therefore, the same accounting policies apply to each interim period and 
fiscal year.
The following do not constitute adjustments to the accounting policies:
- Implementation of an accounting policy for events or transactions that differ in essence due to actions that may have taken place 
before; and
- Implementation of a new accounting policy for events or transactions that have not arisen nor have had any previous importance.
The Company employs the same accounting policies for all periods as required by the consistency principle.

New and revised standards and interpretations
The consolidated financial statements for the fiscal year ending in December 31, 2012 have been prepared according to the ac-
counting policies that were used in the previous years, except for the new and revised standards effective as of January 1, 2012 and 
the interpretations by the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC). The effect of these standards and 
interpretations on the Group’s financial status and performance are described in the relevant paragraphs.

New standards, amendments, and interpretations effective as of January 1, 2012 are as follows:
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IAS 12 Income Taxes – Recovery of Underlying Assets (Amended)
IAS 12 has been amended with the following items:
i) As a legally valid prediction until proven otherwise, calculation of deferred taxes on investment properties where the asset is 
measured by the fair value model in IAS 40, based on the principle that the recovery of the carrying amount of the property will be 
through sale 
ii) Deferred taxes on assets not subject to depreciation and measured according to revaluation model as per IAS 16 should always 
be calculated based on the principle of sales.
The amendments must be applied retrospectively. This amendment has not had any effect on the financial status or performance of 
the Group.

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures Regarding Transfers of Financial Assets (Amended)
Amendments to the standards have occurred as a result of International Accounting Standards Board’s examination of keeping 
activities outside the scope of the balance sheet. The purpose of these amendments is to encourage transparency by reporting 
transfer activities of financial assets, especially like securitization, and ensuring the readers of the financial statements better 
understand the overall effect of these risks on the financial status of the company and the potential risks arising from the transfer, 
including the potential risks that may remain on the party that is transferring the financial asset. This amendment has not had any 
effect on the financial status or performance of the Group.

Standards that have been published but are not yet in effect or have not been adopted early.
New standards, interpretations, and amendments that have been published as of the date of the approval of the consolidated finan-
cial statements but have neither become effective for the current reporting period yet nor have been adopted early by the Group are 
as described below. Unless stated otherwise, the Group will make the necessary changes that will effect its consolidated financial 
statements and footnotes after the new standards and interpretations gain effectiveness.

IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (Amendment) – Presentation of Other Comprehensive Income Statements
The amendments will only change the grouping of items shown in the other comprehensive income statement. Items that may be 
classified (or recovered) in the comprehensive income statement at a future date will be shown separately from items that will never 
be classified in the income statement. The amendments must be applied retrospectively. The amendments only effect the basis of 
presentation; thus, this amendment will not have any effect on the financial status and performance of the Group.

IAS 19 Employee Benefits (Amendment)
This standard is effective for annual periods starting on or after January 1, 2013, and is allowed to be adopted early. Aside from some 
exceptions, the amendments will be applied retrospectively.
The amendment to the standard has clarified many topics and has changed many practices. The most significant ones of the many 
changes made are the elimination of termination liabilities interval mechanism, listing of actuarial profit/loss related to defined 
benefit plans under other comprehensive income, and separation of short-term and long-term employee social rights not based 
on employees eligibility but based on the estimated payment date of the liability. The Group is assessing the effects of the amended 
standard on its financial status and performance.

IAS 27 Separate Financial Statements (Amendment)
As a result of amendments to IFRS 10 and IFRS 12, the IASB has made changes to IAS 27 as well. As a result of these amendments, 
IAS 27 now only covers topics related to the accounting of subsidiaries, joint ventures, and associates in separate financial state-
ments. These amendments have the same transition clauses as IFRS 10. The mentioned amendments are not expected to have any 
effect on the Group’s financial status and performance.

Footnotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Footnotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 31, 2012

Unless otherwise stated, the amounts are in Turkish lira (TL)

İhlas Ev Aletleri İmalat Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.



İHLAS EV ALETLERİ ANNUAL REPORT 201274

IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendment)
As a result of publishing IFRS 11 and IFRS 12, the IASB has amended IAS 28 and changed its named to IAS Investments in Associates 
and Joint Ventures. The amendments have brought accounting of associates as well as joint ventures by method of equity. These 
amendments have the same transition clauses as IFRS 11. The mentioned standard is not expected to have any effect on the Group’s 
financial status or performance.

IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation - Offsetting of Financial Assets and Liabilities (Amendment)
The amendment clarifies the meaning of “having a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts”, and clarifies the scopes of its 
application in systems where the IAS 32 offsetting principle does not take place simultaneously and in settlement systems with 
gross payments, like clearing offices. The amendments will be effective for years starting on or after January 1, 2014, and will be 
implemented retrospectively. The mentioned standard is not expected to have any significant effect on the Group’s financial status 
or performance.

IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures - Offsetting of Financial Assets and Liabilities (Amendment)
The disclosures provide financial statement readers with useful information for i) assessing the effects and possible of offsetting 
activities on the company’s financial statement and ii) comparing and evaluating the financial statements prepared in line with IFRS 
and other widely accepted accounting principles. The amendments will be effective retrospectively for annual and interim periods 
starting on or after January 1, 2013. The amendments only effect the basis of disclosures and will not have any effect on the financial 
status or performance of the Group.

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments – Classification and Disclosure
With the amendments made in December 2011, the new standard will be effective for annual periods starting on or after January 1, 
2015. The first phase of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments brings new clauses regarding the measurement and classification of finan-
cial assets and liabilities. The amendments to IFRS 9 will mainly effect the classification and measurement of financial assets and 
measurement of financial liabilities classified as measured by reflecting differences in fair value to profit or loss. Furthermore, the 
amendments to IFRS 9 bring the presentation of adjustments in fair value of such financial liabilities related to credit risk under 
the comprehensive income statement. Early adoption of this standard is permitted. This standard has not yet been approved by the 
European Union. The Group is assessing the effects of the standard on its financial status and performance.

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
The standard will be effective for annual periods ending on or after January 1, 2014. Changes will be implemented retrospectively 
with some adjustments. IFRS 10 is permitted for early adoption as long as IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements and IFRS 12 Disclosure of 
Interests in Other Entities are adopted at the same time.
It has replaced the part on consolidation in IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements. “Control” has been redefined 
for use in determining which companies will be consolidated. It is a principle based standard that allows more room for financial 
statement preparers to be able to decide. The mentioned standard is not expected to have any significant effect on the Group’s fi-
nancial status or performance.

IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
The standard will be effective for annual periods ending on or after January 1, 2014. Changes will be implemented retrospectively 
with some adjustments. IFRS 11 is permitted for early adoption as long as IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IFRS 12 
Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities are adopted at the same time.
This standard regulates how joint ventures and joint activities will be recognized. Proportional consolidation of joint ventures is no 
longer permitted within the scope of this new standard. The mentioned standard is not expected to have any effect on the Group’s 
financial status or performance.
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IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities
The standard will be effective for annual periods ending on or after January 1, 2014. Changes will be implemented retrospectively 
with some adjustments. IFRS 12 is permitted for early adoption as long as IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements and IFRS 11 
Joint Arrangements are adopted at the same time.
IFRS 12 contains all footnote disclosures related to associates, joint ventures, and subsidiaries formerly outlined in IAS 31 Interests 
in Joint Ventures and IAS 28 Investments in Associates before, as well as all disclosures related to consolidated financial statements 
formerly mentioned in the IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements. In line with the new standard, a comprehensive 
footnote will be disclosed regarding investments in other entities.

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
The new standard explains how fair value is measured in line with IFRS, but does not change when fair value can and/or needs to be 
be used. It is a guideline for all fair value measurements. Furthermore, the new standard brings additional disclosure obligations 
regarding fair value measurements. This standard will be effective prospectively for annual periods ending on or after January 1, 
2013. Early adoption is permitted. The new disclosures need to be given for the period as of IFRS 13 is adopted. No comparative 
disclosure needs to be given for previous years. The mentioned standard is not expected to have any significant effect on the Group’s 
financial status or performance.

IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine 
This standard will be effective for annual periods starting on or after January 1, 2013, and is allowed to be adopted early. The re-
quirements outlined in this interpretation will need to be applied to the stripping costs in the production phase as of the beginning 
of the period in which Companies’ comparison will be presented. The interpretation clarifies when and under what circumstances 
stripping costs in the production phase can be recognized as asset, initial recording of the recognized asset, and how it will be mea-
sured in the following years. The mentioned standard has not yet been approved by the European Union and is not expected to have 
any effect on the Group’s financial status or performance.

Implementation Guide (IFRS 10, IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 amendments)
The amendments are effective for annual periods starting on or after January 1, 2013. In order to eliminate retrospective adjust-
ments, the amendments have been only made to the implementation guide. The first implementation date is defined as “the be-
ginning of the annual year in which IFRS 10 is first implemented”. The evaluation on whether there is a control or not will be done 
on date of implementation rather than the beginning of the period in which it is presented comparatively. If the control evaluation 
done based on IFRS 10 is different than the one done by IAS 27 / IFRIC 12, effects of retrospective adjustments must be identified. 
However, if the evaluation results are the same, there is no need for retrospective adjustment. If more than one comparative period 
is being presented, only the previous period can be adjusted. The IASB has amended the IFRS 11 and IFRS 12 in the implementation 
guide for the same reasons, and has eased the transition clauses. This change has not yet been accepted by the European Union. 
The mentioned standard is not expected to have any significant effect on the Group’s financial status or performance.

Improvements to the IFRS
The IASB has published the Annual IFRS Improvements for the period between 2009 and 2011, including the amendments to the 
existing standards. Necessary but not urgent amendments are done within the scope of annual improvements. The amendments are 
effective for annual periods starting on or after January 1, 2013. As long as necessary disclosures are made, it is permitted for early 
adoption. This project has not yet been accepted by the European Union. The project is not expected to have any significant effect on 
the Group’s financial status or performance.
IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
Difference between minimum mandatory comparative information and optional comparative information has been clarified.
IAS 16 Property, Plant, and Equipment:
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Recognizing spare parts and servicing equipment as inventory in the events where they fit the description of fixed assets has been 
clarified.
IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation:
The need to recognize tax effect of distributions to shareholders within the scope of IAS 12 has been clarified. This amendment 
brings the need to recognize all types of income tax arising from eliminating all existing liabilities in IAS 32 and making distributions 
to shareholders within the scope of the clauses in IAS 12.
IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting:
The required disclosures regarding total segment assets and liabilities for each operating segment in IAS 34 has been clarified. If 
only information on total assets and liabilities of all operating segments are reported periodically to the authorities entitled to make 
decisions regarding the operations of the company, and if a significant change in the total amount disclosed compared to previous 
years’ statements exists, then it must be explained.

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements (Amendment)  
IFRS 10 has been changed to bring an exception for companies that fit the description of an investment company to be exempt of 
consolidation clauses. With the exemption brought on the consolidation clauses, subsidiaries of investment companies need to be 
recognized at fair value, as per the clauses of IFRS Financial Instruments. This amendment is effective for annual periods ending 
on or after January 1, 2014, and is allowed to be adopted early. This change has not yet been accepted by the European Union. The 
mentioned amendments are not expected to have any effect on the Group’s financial status and performance.

C. Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
Corrections and inaccuracies in accounting estimates refer to an adjustment of the carrying amount of an asset or liability, or relat-
ed expense, resulting from reassessing the expected future benefits and obligations associated with that asset or liability. Changes 
in accounting estimates result from a new development or information and, therefore, do not constitute a correction of errors.
While preparing the financial statements according to IFRS, the Company’s management must make some assumptions and esti-
mates that could affect working assets and liabilities and disclosures regarding contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of the 
balance sheet. Actual results may differ from estimates and assumptions. 
Material changes to accounting policies and material accounting errors detected are applied retrospectively, and the previous peri-
od’s financial statements are readjusted. If the changes in accounting estimates are only for one period, they are applied during the 
current period when the changes occur; if they are for future periods, they are applied to both the current period when the changes 
occur and future periods as projected.

D. Summary of Material Accounting Policies
Cash and Cash Equivalents
With respect to the presentation of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash-on-hand and cash in de-
mand deposits and in maturity deposits. Cash and cash equivalents are recognized with the cost of acquisition and the sum of 
interest accrued. As per the Capital Markets Board Communiqué Serial XI, No: 29, financing investments with a maturity of three 
months or less are reported under the “Cash and Cash Equivalents” segment.

Financial Investments
There are three groups of financing investments: financial assets held for trading (whose fair value difference is recognized in the 
income statement), held-to-maturity investments, and available-for-sale financial assets.
During the initial recognition of financial assets whose changes in fair value are not included in profits or losses, the transaction 
costs directly related to the acquisition of the relevant financial asset are added to the recognized fair value.
Financial assets held for trading consist of banks with maturity terms of three months or more; and securities that are part of a 
short-term, profit-oriented portfolio, irrespective of the reason for acquisition; or securities that are acquired for the purpose of 
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profiting from short-term fluctuations in market prices. Initially, financial assets held for trading are measured at fair value. Trans-
action costs related to the acquisition of the relevant financial asset are added to the fair value; the relevant financial assets are 
measured at fair value in the periods subsequent to the initial recognition. Gains or losses from valuation are recognized in profit 
or loss. Financial assets held for trading without an active market are recognized from amortized costs in the subsequent periods. 
Interest accrued during the possession of securities held for trading are initially recognized under interest income and then under 
dividend income from profit. Trading transactions of securities held for trading become either recognized or de-recognized accord-
ing to the delivery dates. 
Held-to-maturity investments are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that an entity intends to hold or that is able to 
be held until maturity. Held-to-maturity investments are measured at amortized costs that have been calculated using the effective 
interest method in the periods after recognition. Gains or losses from valuation are recognized in profit or loss.
The effective interest method is the method that calculates amortized costs of a financial asset (or a financial asset group) and 
distributes the interest income or expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that precisely discounts 
estimated future cash payments or receipts for the expected life, or a shorter period if applicable, of the financial instrument to the 
net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability.
Available-for-sale financial assets are financial assets that are available for sale and are not designated as financing investments 
that are held to maturity or as assets at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition. If the market is inactive, available-for-
sale financial assets are valued at the fair market value; the gains or losses resulting from this valuation are recognized as equities 
until they are de-recognized, as such. If there are no active markets for available-for-sale financial assets, they are valued at the 
amortized cost.

Trade Receivables
Trade receivables from future sales are recognized at the amortized cost based on the effective interest method. Short-term trade 
receivables that do not have a specified interest rate are recognized at billed value when the interest accrued has insignificant effect. 
If the effective rate of interest for trade receivables is not known, the imputed rate of interest is assumed. Because as per trade 
practices, its receivables and payables do not have a cash value and it does not apply delay interest in sales, the Group has used 
LIBOR as the effective interest rate.
Classified under trade receivables, promissory notes and dated checks are subject to rediscounting and are reported with values 
reduced through the effective interest method (amortized cost value).
The difference between the nominal value and the amortized value of trade receivables is recognized by interest income according 
to IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.
Doubtful receivable provisions are recognized as expenses. Provision is the amount that offsets damage due to risk, according to the 
nature of the account or to economic conditions, and is assumed by the Company’s management. 
There are several ways a receivable may be evaluated as being doubtful:  

a) Doubtful receivables from previous years;
b) The debtor’s ability to pay; or
c) Extraordinary conditions in the industry and in the economy.

As stated in IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements”, since trade receivables are a part of the working capital used by a com-
pany in its regular operating cycle, trade receivables must be classified as short-term even if they will be collected within or more 
than twelve months from the balance sheet date.

Inventories
Inventories are required to be stated at the cost or net realizable value, whichever is lower. Inventory costs include all purchasing 
costs, conversion costs, and any other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. The individ-
ual cost of inventory is calculated using the weighted average method. The distribution of fixed production overheads to conversion 
costs are based on the assumption that manufacturing activities will be at normal capacity. The normal capacity is the average 
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volume of manufacturing expected over multiple periods or seasons under normal conditions, taking into account the decrease 
in capacity from scheduled maintenance and repairs. If actual production rate is close to the normal capacity, this capacity can be 
assumed as the normal capacity.
Net realizable value is the estimated cost of sales in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated cost of completion and the 
estimated costs necessary to make the sale. Renewal cost of raw materials and supplies may be the best measure to reflect the net 
realizable value.
For each inventory item, acquisition costs of inventories are written-down values at the net realizable value in order to set aside any 
provisions for impairments of the inventory. In other words, if the cost of the inventory is greater than the net realizable value, the 
cost is a written-down value at the net realizable value subtracted by the provision for the impairment. Otherwise, no transaction 
can be performed. 
If the difference between the cash purchase price and the inventory purchase price with a deferred payment includes financing, then 
the financing is recognized as an interest expense for the period of financing.

Investment Properties
An investment property is property (land or building and/or a part of a building) held on hand in order to obtain rental income and/
or appreciation surplus (by the owner or the lessee depending on the financial leasing contract) rather than the purposes enlisted 
below:
a) Usage for administrative purposes or in the procurement or production of goods or services; or
b) Sale as part of regular business flow
Investment properties are held on hand in order to obtain rental income and/or capital gain(appreciation surplus).
An investment property is recognized by the Group as an asset if and only if it meets both of the following conditions:
a) The inflow of the future economic benefits from the property is probable.
b) The cost of the investment property is accurately measurable.
An investment property is measured by its initial cost. Transaction cost is also included in the initial measurement. However, in-
vestment property acquired via financial leasing is recognized based on the lesser value of the fair value or current value of the 
minimum rental payment.
In the later periods, investment properties are valued by choosing either fair value method or cost method. The Company chooses 
fair value method for valuation of investment properties. 
Fair value of an investment property is determined as the value that arise in the event of handover of an asset among willing groups 
with knowledge or paying a debt. Fair value is determined on the best possible estimate if the property does not have a market. 
Thus, fair value can change as a result of the fluctuations in the estimate and market conditions. When determining fair value, an 
expert opinion on factors like the asset’s risks, market conditions, and depreciation must be considered. Accordingly, the Group has 
studied whether the value of its investment properties was appraised or impaired. As a result of this study, the impairment value 
of its investment properties for the current period has been calculated with other costs in the comprehensive income statement.
Profit or loss resulting from the changes in the fair value of the investment property is recognized in the profit or loss for the period 
in which it occurs, not in the other operational profit/losses.
Even if bought together, land and buildings, are separable fixed assets and are recognized separately. 
Property leased to and used by the parent company or the subsidiaries are not evaluated as investment property in the consolidated 
financial statements. These properties are evaluated as property used by owner, and are reported under tangible fixed assets.

Tangible and Intangible Assets
The cost of a tangible or an intangible asset may be reported under assets in the financial statement only if:
a) It is probable that the future economic benefits attributable to the asset will flow to the enterprise; and
b) The cost of the asset can be measured reliably. 
Intangible and tangible assets are measured at cost for initial recognition. In the subsequent periods, they are measured using either 
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the cost model or the revaluation model.
The initial cost of long-term assets consists of the purchasing price that includes customs, non-refundable purchase taxes, and 
direct costs incurred until the asset is in working condition.
The cost model is the recognition of intangible and tangible assets at cost, less any amortization and impairment losses. 
The revaluation model recognizes intangible and tangible assets at a revalued amount after being recognized as an asset whose fair 
value can be determined reliably. The revalued amount is the fair value at the revaluation date less subsequent amortization and 
impairment losses. Revaluations are performed regularly in order not to create significant differences between the residual value 
and the amount calculated using the fair value on the date of the balance sheet. If there are indications of significant changes for the 
property where the it uses revaluation model, the Company has it revalued. Since there is not an active market for its other intangible 
and tangible assets besides property, the Company applies the cost model. In line with IAS 36 Impairment of Assets, the Group has 
conducted an impairment/appraisal study on its properties. The result of these studies show there is neither an impairment nor an 
appraisal on its properties for the current period. The study has been done with expert individuals/institutions by taking into account 
criteria like fair value stripped of cost of sales (net sales price), location of the tangible assets, imputed transactions, and whether 
it has a market or not.
When a tangible asset is revalued, the accumulated depreciation at the time of the revaluing is readjusted proportionally to the as-
set’s gross book value. Thus, the book value of the asset after revaluing is equal to its revalued value.
IAS 2 “Inventories” and IAS 16 “Property, Plant, and Equipment” standards are applied to the transfers made from the Group’s in-
ventories to its tangible assets with the intention to use in its business operations. Accordingly, the transfer is based on the fair value 
at the time of the transfer.
Amortization is calculated based on the method and useful life indicated in the table below using normal amortization methods and 
criteria:

Useful Life 
(Years) Method

Aboveground and underground setups 5 Straight-Line

Machinery, plants, and equipment 4-15 Straight-Line

Vehicles, tools, and instruments 5-10 Straight-Line

Furniture and fixtures Rights 3-10 Straight-Line

Straight-Line 1-10 Straight-Line

Mining rights, research and development expenses 0-10 Straight-Line

Other Intangible Assets 5-10 Straight-Line

The useful life and amortization method is reviewed regularly to ensure the amortization method and period reflect economic ben-
efit.
Even if bought together, land and buildings, are separable fixed assets and are recognized separately. There is no amortization for 
assets such as property and land, for the useful life of such is indeterminable or indefinite. 
Tangible assets are checked for impairment when an event or circumstance arises in the existing conditions regarding the recov-
erability of the value of the tangible assets. When such events or circumstances arise, or when the carried value exceeds realizable 
value, those assets are written-down values at their realizable value. The realizable value is the higher of an asset’s net selling 
price and its value in use. When calculating value in use, the estimated future cash flow expected to arise is discounted to present 
value, using the pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the asset. Realizable values for assets that do not generate large cash 
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inflow independently from other assets or groups of assets are determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. 
The relevant tangible asset is subjected to depreciation based on its estimated remaining useful life. Amortization and impairment 
losses of tangible assets are recognized under administrative expenses, sales costs, and idle capacity expenses in the idle capacity 
columns of the income statement. 
The Company conducts impairment tests on its assets. Net sales prices for some assets are determined taking into account “sec-
ond-hand market value” and as “depreciated renewal costs” for assets that do not have a second-hand market. Because the net 
sales price for these assets were equal to or more than their book value, their depreciation value has not been calculated; and thus, 
no impairment provision has been set aside. If the net sales price for some assets, like goodwill, cannot be determined, depreciation 
value is used for impairment testing.
Intangible assets represent rights, rights regarding mining investments, research, and development expenses, and other non-mon-
etary items. Intangible assets purchased before January 1, 2005, are recognized as cost adjustments due to the effects of inflation, 
as of December 31, 2004; those purchased after December 31, 2004, are recognized as the purchasing cost minus the accumulated 
amortization and impairment values. Amortization of intangible assets was calculated using the straight-line method from the use-
ful life of the assets, without exceeding their economic life starting from the date of purchase. Moreover, no intangible asset has an 
indefinite useful life. Amortization of intangible assets are recognized under administrative expenses, sales costs, and idle capacity 
expenses in the idle capacity columns of the income statement. 
Profit or loss from discarding tangible and intangible assets is determined by comparing the net book value with the sales value and 
is recorded under income and cost from other activities.
As per IFRS 6 “Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Assets”, rights regarding mining investments, research and development 
expenses within intangible assets are capitalized based on cost value when an economic benefit in the future is probable. Moreover, 
these intangible assets are amortized based on the economic benefit. Rights and research and development expenses recorded via 
amortization or direct cost cannot be capitalized afterwards even if a reserve for a tradeable mineral is detected as a result of this 
research. Acquisition of exploration rights, the topographic, geological, geochemical, and geophysical studies, exploratory drilling, 
excaSales Tax (KDV)ion, and other similar types of expenses are included in the cost during the initial recognition of research and 
development assets. “The Framework for the Preparation of Financial Statements” and the standards of IAS 38 “Intangible Assets” 
are applied in recognition of assets emerging from exploration activities. Removal and restoration liabilities arising during a certain 
period as a result of assuming exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources are recognized in the financial statement, accord-
ing to the standards of IAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, and Contingent Assets”. 
Receivables, payables, income and expenses, and cash flow resulting from the exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources 
are presented in the disclosures within the report.

Held-for-Sale Fixed Assets and Discontinued Operations
Assets held in hand for the purpose of recovering the registered value through selling it rather than using it are classified as held-
for-sale fixed assets. These assets may be an operational unit, sales groups, or a separate tangible asset. Assets held-for-sale are 
expected to be sold within twelve months of the date of the balance sheet. The completion of the sales process may surpass one 
year due to various events or circumstances. In the event this delay occurs due to events and circumstances not controllable by the 
company and there is not enough evidence to prove that the company is still planning to sell the asset (or the sellout of a group of 
assets), the extension of the period needed to complete the sellout does not prevent the asset from being classified as a held-for-
sale asset.
Discontinued operations may refer to operational units that have been sold out or are being held-for-sale. Discontinued operations 
fall under one of the following: 
(a) refers to the operations or significant line of business of a certain geographical region, or 
(b) is part of a plan to sellout the operations or significant line of business of a certain geographical region, or (c) the acquisition of a 
subsidiary with the intention to resell.
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Fixed assets held-for-sale are valued at the lesser of book value or fair value. If fair value is below the book value, the impairment 
is recorded in the consolidated income statement for the period in which it occurs.

Taxation and Deferred Taxes
Turkish tax regulations do not allow for the parent company and its subsidiaries to file a consolidated tax return. Thus, the tax pro-
visions recognized in consolidated financial statements have been calculated separately for each company. The Group’s tax income 
and expenses is the sum of its current tax and deferred tax income and expenses. 
Current year tax liability is calculated based on the taxable portion of the profit of the period. Tax provisions shown in the consolidat-
ed financial statement differ from those in the income statement because taxable profit excludes profits and losses both, taxable or 
deductible, and non-taxable and non-deductible in other years. The Group’s current tax liability was calculated based on the tax rate 
that was either already legally accepted or will be accepted at the balance sheet date.
Payable current taxes are netted with the tax amount paid upfront if they are made or will be made to the same tax authority. De-
ferred tax asset and liability is netted in the same manner.
Deferred taxes are determined using the liability method based on the temporary differences between the recognized values and 
the tax values of assets and liabilities stated in the consolidated financial statement. These temporary differences are segmented 
separately as deductible or taxable. For all temporary differences that may constitute taxable income, a deferred tax asset should 
be recognized only on the condition that it is considered highly probable that there will be sufficient future taxable profit from which 
these expenses can be deducted and that the process will not be part of a business combination or that the liability did not arise from 
initial recognition. All taxable temporary differences are recognized as a deferred tax liability. However, temporary differences that 
arose from the initial recognition of goodwill, during the initial recognition of an asset or liability or from non-business combination 
transactions, may not be recognized as a deferred tax liability.
A deferred tax asset should be recognized for an unused tax loss carry-forward item or an unused tax credit only on the condition 
that it is considered probable that there will be sufficient future taxable profit against which the loss or credit carry-forward items 
can be utilized.
According to the tax laws, tax schedules currently in effect or substantively in effect as of the date of the balance sheet are used 
when calculating deferred tax. 
When calculating deferred tax liability for all taxable temporary differences, the deferred tax assets consisting of deductible tem-
porary differences are calculated on the condition that the enterprise will generate taxable profit in the future and that it is virtually 
certain these differences will be utilized. (Note 35)
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are deducted from each other so long as they are subject to the tax laws of the same 
country, and no legal rights exist regarding the deduction of current tax assets from current tax liabilities.

Goodwill
The acquisition method (or purchase method) is used for all mergers. These are the steps in applying the acquisition method:

a) Identification of the buyer;
b) Determination of the acquisition cost; and
c) Distribution of the merger costs incurred on the date of the merger to acquired assets, assumed liabilities, and contingent 
liabilities.

Goodwill is the measured difference between the acquisition cost of acquired assets or business and the fair value of net assets of 
the business as of the date of acquisition. If the acquisition cost exceeds the fair value of the acquired net assets, then the difference 
is recognized as goodwill on the balance sheet. If the fair value of the acquired net assets exceeds the acquisition cost, then the 
difference is recognized as a merger profit (negative goodwill) on the income statement.
According to IFRS 3 “Business Combinations”, when the recoverable value of the goodwill is less than its recognized value and there 
exist elements that could constitute an impairment of the asset, an impairment provision is established for the goodwill. Among 
the items that constitute an impairment of the asset are significant changes in the activities of the acquired business; significant 
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differences between the actual results and the forward estimates made on the acquisition date; malfunction of the product, service, 
or technology of the acquired business; and other issues indicating non-recoverability of the recognized value of the asset. 

Termination Benefit Provisions
Severance indemnities are the documented sums of all potential estimated liabilities arising from the retirements or complete sev-
erances of employees who no longer have ties to the Company, in line with the Turkish Commercial Code, after at least 12 months 
of service, the military draft, or death in the foreseeable future, as of the date of the balance sheet. (Note 24)
Kıdem tazminatı yükümlülüklerinin indirgenmesi için aktüeryal değerleme yöntemi kullanılmıştır. Bunun için de aktüeryal var-
sayımlar yapılmıştır. The most important of these is the discount rate used in the discounting process.
The rate used to discount post-employment benefit liabilities (severance indemnity provisions) should be determined by a reference 
to market yields of high quality corporate bonds on the date of the balance sheet. Due to the lack of a deep market for such bonds, 
a real interest rate has been applied by a reference to market yields (compound interest rates) of government bonds (on the balance 
sheet date). In other words, the net interest rate based on inflation (net real interest rate) is used. (Note 24)  
In this context, the Group accrued severance provisions in the financial statements attached based on the actuarial calculations 
made in accordance with IAS 19 “Employee Benefits” for the potential future liabilities that arise in the event all financial institutions 
employees subject to the labor act are retired or terminated after one year of employment, or called upon for military service or 
deceased.

Provisions, Contingent Assets and Liabilities
Provisions are recognized provided that a present obligation has arisen as a result of a past event, that the probability exists of dis-
posing any resources of economic benefit to the enterprise through the liabilities, and that the amount can be estimated accurately. 
If some or all of the expenditures required in settling a provision are expected to be reimbursed by another party, the reimburse-
ment should be recognized in the financial statement. However, it must be virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if 
the enterprise settles the obligation.
One of three methods is used in allocating provisions. The first of these methods is applied where the effect of the time value of 
money is material. The provisions are recognized at discounted values of expected future expenses on the date of the balance sheet 
when the effect of the time value of money becomes material. When the discounted value is used, the increases in provisions due 
to time will be recognized as interest expenses. In the provisions where the effect of money is material, the discount is applied using 
the risk-free discount rate based on government bonds that have the same maturity as the expected cash flow, assuming there are 
no risks and uncertainties in determining the expected cash flow. The second method is the expected value method. This method 
is used for provisions for large populations or events; the liability is estimated taking into account all probable outcomes. The third 
method is the recognition of provisions in the financial statements by measuring one-off events or liabilities at the most likely 
amount.
Assets and liabilities that arise from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence 
of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the enterprise are excluded from the financial statements 
and are classified as contingent assets and liabilities and explained in the footnotes. (Notes 22-23)

Warranty Provisions
Warranty provisions are the recognized expenses of repair and maintenance performed for goods manufactured and sold by the 
enterprises, the cost of labor performed, the parts used at the technical service centers free of charge as part of the warranty, the 
cost of initial maintenance assumed by the enterprises, and the results of estimates calculated from previous data for probable 
levels of return and repair in subsequent years for goods whose revenues are recorded as income for the current year. (Notes 22-23)
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Leases
Finance Leases:
Finance leases that substantially transfer the entire risks and rewards incident to the asset leased to the Company and the Group 
companies are measured at the lesser of the fair value and the present value of the lease payments for the leased asset at the be-
ginning of the lease. The finance lease payments are allocated as principal and finance expenses so as to produce a fixed periodic 
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the payables for each period over the term of the lease. The finance expenses are recog-
nized in the income statement on a straight-line basis. The capitalized leased assets are subject to amortization over the estimated 
useful life of the asset.
Fair value used in finance leases are the purchase price used in the acquisition of the asset and agreed between the parties. Min-
imum rent payments include capital and total liabilities like interest and taxes. Because the current value of these is less than the 
purchase price (capital), they are recognized at purchase price.
Operating Leases:
All leases where the lessor retains all the risks and rewards of the leased assets are considered operating leases. The operating 
lease payments are recognized as straight-line expenses in the income statement throughout the term of the lease.

Revenue
Revenue is recognized when the flow of economic benefits to the entity is probable and when the amount of revenue can be mea-
sured accurately. Revenue is an amount recognized as net; in other words, from which rebates, value added tax, and sales tax have 
been subtracted. In order for revenue to be generated, the following criteria must be realized.  
Sale of Goods:
Revenue arising from the transfer of risks and rewards of goods sold to the buyer and where the amount of revenue can be measured 
reliably is considered generated revenue. Net sales consist of the transaction value billed after rebates and commissions have been 
deducted. 
Sale of Services:
Revenue arising from the sale of services is recognized when it reaches a stage of completion that can be measured reliably. If the 
revenue generated from the agreement cannot be measured reliably, the revenue is recognized only to the extent of the expenses 
recognized as recoverable.
Interest:
Revenue is recognized on an accrual basis when collections are not doubtful.
Dividend:
Revenue is recognized when the shareholders’ right to receive payment is established.
Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration receivable. When transactions are deferred, the difference between the 
nominal value and the fair value (discounted value) of the transaction value is recognized as interest revenue according to the stan-
dards of IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”.
When the outcome of a sale of service cannot be measured reliably, the transaction revenue is recognized with reference to the stage 
of completion of the transaction on the date of the balance sheet.
The stage of completion of a sale of service can be measured using various methods. Depending on the nature of the transaction, 
the method that provides a reliable measurement is used. Depending on the nature of the transaction, these are the methods:

a) Audits of the completed transactions; 
b) Rate of services completed until the balance sheet date to the total considered services; and
c) Rate of cost to date to the total expected cost of the transaction.
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Non-accrual Financial Income/Expenses
Non-accrual financial income/expenses represent the financial income and expenses recognized in forward sales and purchases. 
These income and expenses are calculated using the effective interest method throughout the period of the credit sales and pur-
chases and are shown under the financial income/expenses account.

Borrowing Costs
Borrowing costs are recognized as expenses in the consolidated financial statement, irrespective of the nature of the borrowing, 
during the period in which they are incurred and after the cost of the transaction has been deducted. In the subsequent periods, it 
is recognized at the discounted value in the consolidated financial statement, and the difference between the cash inflow and the 
repayment value is expensed in the income statement throughout the borrowing term.
However, borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, or production of a qualifying asset should be capi-
talized as part of the cost of that asset. Capitalization should commence when expenditures and borrowing costs are incurred and 
while activities necessary to prepare the asset for its intended use or sale are in progress.

Earnings per Share
Earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary equity holders by the weighted average 
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the 
period is calculated with respect to undiluted earnings per share.

Financial Instruments
Recognition and De-recognition of Financial Instruments:
An entity must recognize financial assets or financial liabilities in the balance sheet only when the entity becomes a party to the con-
tractual provisions of the financial instrument. The entity must de-recognize a financial asset or part of a financial liability when the 
entity does not control the asset. All financial liability should be removed from the balance sheet only when the obligation specified 
in the contract is discharged, cancelled, or expired.
Fair value of financial instruments:
Fair value is the amount at which an asset may be exchanged or a liability settled between knowledgeable, willing parties in an arm’s 
length transaction, and if this exists, the fair value is best determined by quoted market prices.
The fair values of financial instruments are determined by the enterprise, using active market inputs and an acceptable valuation 
technique. However, discretion is used in the interpretation of market inputs for estimating fair value. Hence, the estimates presented 
here may not indicate the value the entity may obtain from a current transaction in a market.
The methods and assumptions below have been used in the estimation of the fair value of financial instruments whose fair value 
can be determined.
Financial Assets:
The fair value of foreign currency balances that have been converted from end-of-period rates are recognized as being within rea-
sonable convergence to the recognized value. Foreign currency exchange rate income and expenses arising from these types of 
financial instruments are reported in the financial income/expenses account.
The fair value of financial assets recognized at cost, including cash, banks, and bank deposits, are recognized as near registered 
value due to the negligibility of losses in receivables and being short-termed. 
Translation revenue and expenses arising from the valuation of foreign currency balances in cash and in demand deposits are 
reported in the financial income/expenses account. Time deposits (restricted and unrestricted) balances are valued based on the 
effective interest rate method; gains or losses are reported in the financial revenue/expense account. Mutual fund gains or losses 
are reported as securities sales profit/loss in the financial income/expenses account.
Fair values of securities investments are calculated according to their market values on the date of the balance sheet.
Recognized values of business loans and receivables and doubtful receivables provisions are estimated to reflect their fair value. 
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Recognized values of trade receivables and doubtful receivables provisions are estimated to reflect their fair value.
Financial Liabilities:
The fair values of short-term bank loans, customer deposits, and other monetary liabilities are recognized to have neared recognized 
value due to having short terms.
Long-term loans in foreign currency are converted from end-of-period rates; hence, their fair value is within reasonable conver-
gence to the registered value.
Trade payables are measured at fair value. According to the standards of IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements”, because they 
are part of the working capital used by the enterprise during a normal operating cycle, trade payables are classified as short-term 
even if they are not due within twelve months after the reporting date.
If the Group chooses and plans to refinance or rotates its financial liabilities within twelve months after the reporting period, then 
this liability is reset in the long-term, even if it will be paid in the short-term. However, if the company does not choose or prefer to 
refinance or rotate its financial liabilities (i.e. a refinancing contract does not exist), a possibility of refinancing is not considered and 
the liability is reset in the short-term.
All trade and financial liabilities are appreciated based on the effective interest rate method and all arising profits and losses are 
reported under cost of sales and financial income/expenses.
Impairment of Financial Instruments
At the end of each reporting period, financial asset and financial liability groups, measured by amortized costs, are assessed for 
having equitable indications on value impairment. In the event of the presence of such an indication, the loss from impairment is 
calculated. It may not be possible to identify a single stand-alone event that caused the value impairments; sometimes more than 
one reason may be behind it. (See Note 39-e)
Classification of Financial Instruments
According to the IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”, financial assets are classified into four groups and 
financial liabilities into two groups. Financial assets include loans, receivables and assets for sales items where fair value differenc-
es are reflected in the income statement. On the other hand, financial liabilities are classified into two groups: those with fair value 
differences reflected in the income statement and those classified as other financial liabilities.
Values and classifications of financial assets and liabilities as of December 31, 2012 and as of December 31, 2011 are depicted below.

31.12.2012

Fair Value 
Difference 

Financial 
Assets Listed 
in the Income 

Statement

Financial 
Assets to be 

Held-on-Hand 
until End of 

Term

Loans and 
Payables

Ready-to-sell 
Financial 

Assets

Other Debts/
Debts Measured 

by Amortized 
Cost

Financial Assets          

Cash and Cash Equivalents 88.220.142 572.225 - 1.470.663 -

Trade Receivables - - 63.744.451 - -

Other Receivables - - 12.588.693 - -

Financial Liabilities          

Financial Liabilities - - - - -

Other Financial Liabilities - - - - 39.342.259

Trade Payables - - - - 34.113.503

Other Payables - - - - 12.400
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31.12.2011

Fair Value 
Difference 

Financial 
Assets Listed 
in the Income 

Statement

Financial 
Assets to be 

Held-on-Hand 
until End of 

Term

Loans and 
Payables

Ready-to-sell 
Financial 

Assets

Other Debts/
Debts Measured 

by Amortized 
Cost

Financial Assets          

Cash and Cash Equivalents 44.074.496 27.606 - 1.364.959 -

Trade Receivables - - 63.808.556 - -

Other Receivables - - 1.130.371 - -

Financial Liabilities          

Financial Liabilities - - - - 61.377

Other Financial Liabilities - - - - 28.899.098

Trade Payables - - - - 41.996.402

Other Payables - - - - -

Fair value measurements are described in the accounting policies for each financial asset and liability; and there is no other event 
that requires revaluation. Book value of cash and banks are accepted to be similar to their fair value.

Financial Risk Management
Collection Risk
The Group’s collection risk is generally due to trade receivables. Trade receivables are evaluated by the enterprise’s administration 
based on previous experiences and market conditions, and an acceptable amount of doubtful receivable provision is allocated. Pro-
visions have been allocated for doubtful receivables incurred until the report date. (Note 39).
Currency Risk
Currency risk arises from changes in the foreign exchange rates of a financial instrument. The balance of the foreign currency trans-
actions from operating, investment, and finance activities of the Group as of the report date is given in Note 38. A foreign currency 
risk arises when exchange rates increase where the Turkish lira depreciates against foreign currencies. (Note 39-d). 
Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk of an enterprise facing difficulty in finding funds to fulfill financial instrument commitments. The Group 
manages its liquidity risk by balancing the distribution of the maturity of its assets and liabilities. (Note 39-f) 

Government Incentives and Aid
Government incentives are not reflected in the financial statements unless a reasonable assurance exists that certain terms will be 
fulfilled. These terms include: a) the conditions for obtaining the incentive are met by the company; and b) the incentive is obtained 
by the company. Unless a reasonable assurance exists that the company will meet the conditions required for the incentive and that 
the incentive will be obtained, government incentives are not reflected in the financial statements.

Dividend
Dividend receivables are recognized as revenue in the period announced. Dividend payables are reflected in the consolidated finan-
cial statements as a liability in the period announced, as part of the profit distribution.

Issued Capital
Common stock shares are classified in equity. The costs associated with new share issues are reflected in equity on an after-tax 
proceeds basis.
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Share Premiums
Stock issue premiums represent the difference arising from the sale of stock in the company and subsidiaries or investments valued 
on the equity method above their nominal values or the difference between the fair values and the nominal values of the stock issued 
for the companies acquired by the Group.

Events after the Reporting Period
Events after the annual reporting period refers to events, either favorable or unfavorable, that occur between the end of the annual 
reporting period and the date that the financial statements are authorized for issue. According to the standards of IAS 10 “Events 
after the Reporting Period” the entity must adjust its financial statements to reflect the new events if an event after the annual re-
porting period provides further evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the annual reporting period or if an event arises after 
the annual reporting period that requires adjusting the financial statements. If these events do not require adjusting the financial 
statements, the entity must explain these events in the footnotes to its financial statement. (Note 40)

Cash Flow Statement
Cash includes currency and demand deposits for the purposes of cash flow statements. With high liquidity and negligible valuation 
differences, cash equivalents are investments that are easily convertible into cash in the short term. Not used for any other invest-
ment purposes, cash equivalents are assets held to meet short-term liabilities. Any asset qualifying as a cash equivalent must be 
convertible into cash with certain identifiable value, and the difference risk of this value should not exceed negligible amount. Based 
on this definition, investments with three months or less maturity are considered as cash equivalents. Investments in securities 
that represent equity are not considered as cash equivalents unless they have intrinsic cash equivalent properties (e.g., preferred 
stocks with fixed redemption dates).
The Company draws up the cash flow statements reported to readers, the changes in net assets, the competency to manage the 
financial structure, and the amounts and timing of cash flow under varying business conditions.
In the Company’s cash flow statement, the cash flow for the annual period is reported according to classifications based on opera-
tions, investments and financing activities. The cash flow from operational activities is generated from operational areas where the 
Company operates. Investment activities of cash flow show the flow of cash used and sourced through the investment activities of 
the company. Cash flow from financial activities show the actives the Company has used in financial activities and the repayment of 
these actives.

Segment Reports
A segment represents the unit where a company executes the following:
(a) Conducts operational activities to generate sales revenues and make payments (including revenues and expenses related to 
transactions carried out with other parts of the company);
(b) Regularly reviews the operating results to determine which sources to allocate to the unit and to assess the unit’s performance 
through management channels authorized to make decisions on operations; and
(c) Maintains a separate set of related financial reports.
Segments to be reported are determined based on activities for which the revenue and expenses can be identified separately and for 
each company within the scope of the Group’s consolidation as subsidiary, associate, and joint venture. Because each of the compa-
nies within the scope of the consolidation have activities that can be segmented, the reporting has been done with the consideration 
of this criteria in Note 5. The goods and services bought and sold between these companies are generally done up to market value.

E. Material Accounting Evaluations, Estimations and Assumptions
The preparation of the consolidated financial statements entails estimations and assumptions made that could affect the total re-
ported assets and liabilities and the explanations of contingent assets and liabilities and revenues and expenses during the annual 
reporting period. Any assessment, estimation and assumption employed in accounting is constantly reviewed and assessed in 
light of past experiences, additional factors, current circumstances and reasonable expectations about future developments. Actual 
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results may deviate from assumptions, even though the estimations and assumptions reflect the best judgment of management of 
current events and transactions. 
Significant estimations and assumptions used by the Group when preparing the consolidated financial statements are explained in 
these notes:
Note 2-d 	 Fair value determination 
Note 2-d	 Tangible and intangible fixed assets useful life and impairment provisions
Notes 7 and 39-g 	 Stock value impairment provisions
Notes 10 and 39-e	 Trade receivables impairment provisions
Note 13 	 Inventories impairment provisions
Notes 22-23	 Lawsuit and warranty provisions
Note 24	 Termination Benefit Provisions
Note 35-b	 Deferred taxes assets and liabilities
Sources of uncertainty as of the annual report date related to calculations and assumptions pertaining to the subsequent period 
and posing a risk that could cause significant adjustments to the assets and liabilities of the subsequent annual reporting period 
are explained below:

a) As per the accounting policies determined, the Group subjects the values of the goodwill to impairment tests annually 
and in events where conditions indicate a potential impairment. The values of the goodwill have been compared to their 
recoverable values and have been subjected to value impairment test. Recoverable values are determined based on the 
usage values. 
b) Deferred taxes are recognized when it is determined that taxable income could be generated in the years ahead.  When 
taxable income is anticipated in the future, then the deferred tax is calculated on the carried forward but unused losses 
as well as on any deductible temporary differences.  The Group reviewed its deferred taxes carried on the books as of 
December 31, 2012.
c) Management used certain assumptions and estimations when calculating severance provisions (Note 24) and deter-
mining useful life and doubtful receivables provisions. (Notes 10 and 39-e)

Note 3 – Mergers
Current Reporting Period:
Pursuant to Turkish Commercial Code No. 6762 Article 451 and Corporate Tax Law No. 5520 Articles 19 and 20, Mir İç ve Dış Tic. 
Maden San. Ltd. Şti., one of the group companies, was completely merged to İhlas Kimya Ltd. Şti. through transfer of all of its assets 
and liabilities in the current period by the resolution of the Shareholder’s Assembly dated May 21, 2012. Following the merger, İhlas 
Kimya Ltd. Şti. has changed its title to Mir Maden İşletmeciliği Enerji ve Kimya San. Tic. Ltd. Şti. Since this merger was not an ac-
quisition, no goodwill was created. Furthermore, the fair value of assets and liabilities identifiable from the merger are listed below.

Cash and Cash Equivalents 52.181

Other Current Assets 117.958

Tangible Fixed Assets 13.237

Intangible Fixed Assets 2

Trade Payables (short-term) (1.743.589)

Related Party Liabilities (short-term) (1.175.416)

Other Payables (24.874)

Other Short-Term and Long-Term Liabilities (234.247)

Fair value of assets and liabilities resulting from the merger (net) (2.994.748)
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Previous Reporting Period:
Ihlas Madencilik and Bayındır Madencilik, both Group companies, decided to initiate the merger process as a result of the Board of 
Directors decision dated January 11, 2011. They applied to the Capital Markets Board (CMB) to incorporate Ihlas Madencilik A.Ş in 
Bayındır Madencilik by taking over all of its assets and liabilities in its entirety, in accordance with the current legislation provisions, 
and to change the title of Bayındır Madencilik to “Ihlas Madencilik A.Ş”.
This application was approved in the Weekly Bulletin No 2011/13 of the Capital Markets Board, which was published on April 1, 2011.
The following decisions were made at the 2010 Ordinary General Assembly of Bayındır Madencilik, dated May 07, 2011:
It has been decided for Bayındır Madencilik to merge with Ihlas Madencilik through acquisition as per legal provisions and legal per-
missions obtained and for Articles 2 and 6 of the Company Articles of Association be amended as per the permission given by R.o.T. 
Capital Markets Board and R.o.T. Ministry of Industry and Commerce General Directorate of Domestic Trade. Accordingly, the title of 
Bayındır Madencilik will be Ihlas Madencilik A.Ş., and paid capital of Bayındır Madencilik to be reduced from 36,000,000 Turkish lira 
to 23,576,467 Turkish lira, and for the paid capital to increase from 55,966,071 Turkish lira to 79,542,538 Turkish lira concurrently 
with the reduction of the paid capital as a result of the merger.
The merger operation of Ihlas Madencilik with Bayındır Madencilik was approved on May 18, 2011 and the issued capital of Bayındır 
Madencilik was raised to 79,542,538 Turkish lira. The title of Bayındır Madencilik was then changed to Ihlas Madencilik A.Ş.
The “Extra capital contribution in respect of consolidation” difference of 7,856,558 Turkish lira, including the minority shares occur-
ring due to the capital reduction in the aforementioned merger, is shown as “Other Capital Reserves” in the consolidated financial 
statement (balance sheet) since there is no related component in the basis of presentation of financial statements of the Capital 
Markets Board.

Note 4 – Joint Ventures
None. (December 31, 2011: None.)

Note 5 – Segment Reports

January 1 - December 31, 2012 period;
Home

Appliances
Mining and 

Energy
Group Total

Sales Income (net) 100.789.333 751.027 101.540.360

Cost of Sales (-) (88.695.116) (1.577.257) (90.272.373)

Gross Profit / Loss 12.094.217 (826.230) 11.267.987 

Operating Expenses (9.633.902) (3.473.846) (13.107.748)

Diğer Faaliyet. Gelir ve Karlar 42.024.467 1.240.541 43.265.008

Diğer Faal. Gider ve Zararlar(-) (10.449.134) (2.122.361) (12.571.495)

Operational Profit / (Loss) 34.035.648 (5.181.896) 28.853.752 

Financial Income / (Cost), net (3.926.111) (1.327.801) (5.253.912)

Gross Profit / Loss of On-Going Activities 30.109.537 (6.509.697) 23.599.840

Total Assets 250.253.882 53.968.816 304.222.698

Total Liabilities 79.494.194 6.601.805 86.095.999
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January 1 - December 31, 2011 period;
Home

Appliances
Mining and 

Energy
Group Total

Sales Income (net) 98.360.388 1.148.152 99.508.540

Cost of Sales (-) (91.778.333) (1.029.511) (92.807.844)

Gross Profit / Loss 6.582.055 118.641 6.700.696 

Operating Expenses (10.024.448) (3.049.664) (13.074.112)

Other Operations Profit and Loss 8.520.569 4.462.807 12.983.376 

Other Operations Costs and Losses (-) (33.366.074) (991.856) (34.357.930)

Operational Profit / (Loss) (28.287.898) 539.928 (27.747.970)

Financial Income / (Cost), net (4.500.773) 205.594 (4.295.179)

Gross Profit / Loss of On-Going Activities (32.788.671) 745.522 (32.043.149)

Total Assets 221.837.532 63.965.283 285.802.815

Total Liabilities 75.304.649 7.043.056 82.347.705

Note 6 - Cash and Cash Equivalents
  31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Cash 188.842 113.091

Banks 840.542 357.642

Demand Deposits 268.317 330.036

Term Deposits (TL) 572.225 27.606

        -Liquid funds 572.225 27.606

Checks and promissory notes maturing on the reporting date 500.000 -

Other Cash Equivalent 3.998 11

Total 1.533.382 470.744

Ihlas Madencilik A.Ş. has blocked demand deposit of 102,856 Turkish lira at the date of the reporting period. (Previous year: 125,986 Turkish lira)

Note 7 - Financial Investments 
  31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Financial assets whose fair value differences are recognized in the profit/loss statement 87.258.985 43.631.358

Stocks 71.135.037 58.936.619

Provisions for Stock Value Appreciation (+) / Impairment (-) 16.123.948 (15.305.261)

Short-Term Financial Investments 87.258.985 43.631.358
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Long-Term Financial Investments

Ready-to-sell Financial Assets Share (%) 31.12.2012 Pay (%) 31.12.2011

A-Unconsolidated Subsidiaries

Ihlas Mining ( a ) %56,02 328.185 %56,02 328.185

Provisions for Ihlas Mining Impairment (-) (144.576) (111.774)

B-Unconsolidated Associates

Detes Maden Enerji ve Çevre Tek. Sis. Ltd Şti. ( b ) - - %20,00 10.000

C- Equity securities of affiliates and subsidiaries

Ihlas Gazetecilik A.Ş. ( c ) %1,03 1.315.923 %1,03 1.315.923

Provisions for Ihlas Gazetecilik Impairment / Appreciation (28.869) (177.375)

TOTAL 1.470.663 1.364.959

Based on their financial position as of December 31, 2012, and December 31, 2011, and operations ending on the same dates, 
subsidiaries which are not materially significant on a single or consolidated basis in the total consolidated financial statements 
are excluded from the consolidation. These subsidiaries are classified as “Assets-For-Sale Financial Assets” in the consolidated 
financial statements.
(a) Ihlas Mining, a company founded in Ghana on July 11, 2008, with a total capital share of $300,000 and 90 percent owned by the 
Company’s subsidiary, Ihlas Madencilik A.Ş., is excluded from the consolidation since its financial statements as of December 31, 
2011, are not materially significant in the consolidated financial statements, and its operations do not generate significant cash flow. 
The Company has no obligation towards this subsidiary except for the initial capital infusion; and the necessary impairment provision 
has been set aside.
(b) The company was merged with İhlas Kimya Ltd. Şti. during the fiscal year. Then, İhlas Kimya Ltd. Şti. was merged with Mir İç ve 
Dış Ticaret Ltd. Şti., changing its title to Mir Maden İşletmeciliği Enerji ve Kimya San. Tic. Ltd. Şti., subsequent to the mergers. The 
company is now being consolidated with the title, Mir Maden İşletmeciliği Enerji ve Kimya San. Tic. Ltd. Şti
(c) It has been valued based on market value, and impairments have been associated with other activity costs. Ihlas Gazetecilik A.Ş. 
shares are traded on the Istanbul Stock Exchange and its financial statements and reports are published on the Public Disclosure 
Platform quarterly. Financial statements for the Company’s available-to-sell unconsolidated subsidiary, Ihlas Mining dated Decem-
ber 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 along with the financial statement for previously unconsolidated Detes Ltd. dated December 
31, 2012, are as follows:

Ihlas Mining (USD) 31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Current Assets 56.562 100.071

Fixed Assets 15.000 15.000

Short-Term Liabilities - -

Long-Term Liabilities - -

Equities 71.562 115.071

Net Sales - -

Current Net Profit/(Loss) (3.877) (6.200)
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Detes Ltd. 31.12.2011

Current Assets 42.175

Fixed Assets 834

Short-Term Liabilities 575.689

Long-Term Liabilities -

Equities (532.680)

Net Sales 32.430

Current Net Profit/(Loss) (18.234)

Note 8 - Financial Liabilities
  31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Short-term financial liabilities - 61.377

Bank loans - 59.618

Financial Leasing Liabilities - 1.759

A-) Bank Loans:
31.12.2012: None.

31.12.2011

  Currency
Applied Interest 

Rate(%)
Maturity Amount in TL

Short-Term Loans TL 10-12 Up to three months 59.618

59.618

The maturity analyses of bank loans as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 are shown below:

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Loans - 59.618

- Loans with maturity of up to three months - 59.618

B-) Financial Leasing Liabilities:

Currency Maturity 31.12.2012 31.12.2011

EURO Up to three months - 1.759

- 1.759
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The maturity analyses of financial leasing liabilities as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 are shown below: 

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Financial Leasing Liabilities - 1.759

- Financial Leasing Liabilities with maturity of up to three months - 1.759

 
Financial leasing activities are reported with the lesser of fair value or current value of minimum lease payments. In the analyses 
conducted, it has been concluded that the fair value (purchasing price subtracted by down payments) is lesser than the current 
value of minimum lease payments. Financial leasing activities have been reported based on their fair value as of the dates of the 
balance sheets. Classification of financial liabilities, based on IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”, have 
been established in Financial Instruments section of Note 2.

Note 9 - Other Financial Liabilities
31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Other Financial Liabilities 39.342.259 28.899.098

Revolving Loans 39.342.259 28.899.098

Classification of other financial liabilities, based on IAS 39 “Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”, have been es-
tablished in Financial Instruments section of Note 2.

Note 10 - Trade Receivables and Payables
31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Trade Receivables from Related Parties (*) 13.951.131 2.947.757

- Gross Trade Receivables from Related Parties 15.003.028 3.198.116

- Provisions for Doubtful Receivables from Related Parties (-) (1.377) -

- Rediscount of Trade Receivables from Related Parties (-)          (1.050.520)             (250.359)

Other Trade Receivables 49.793.320 60.860.799

- Customers 6.025.529 6.989.409

- Post-dated che cks and promissory notes 50.676.053 59.847.672

- Rediscount on trade receivables (-)     (1.856.422) (2.721.942)

- Less: doubtful receivables provisions     (5.051.840)          (3.254.340)

Short-Term Trade Receivables 63.744.451 63.808.556

The statements related with the provisions for doubtful trade receivables are shown below:

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Balance as of January 1         (3.254.340)         (3.384.140)

Provisions derived from mergers (1.557.098) -

Amount of current period provisions (241.779) -

Provisions that are no longer required in the period - 129.800

Balance as of the end of the period (5.053.217) (3.254.340)

Footnotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Footnotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 31, 2012

Unless otherwise stated, the amounts are in Turkish lira (TL)

İhlas Ev Aletleri İmalat Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.



İHLAS EV ALETLERİ ANNUAL REPORT 201294

Note 39-e shows in detail the maturity analysis and provisions related to past dues with impairment provisions as well as past dues 
without impairment provisions.
Note 39-e shows the maturity analysis for trade receivables (net) that are not past due as of December 31, 2012.

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Trade Payables to Related Parties (*) 686.246 591.036

- Gross Trade Payables to Related Parties 697.355 605.742

- Rediscount of Trade Payables to Related Parties (-)         (11.109)               (14.706)

- Other Trade Payables 33.427.257 41.405.366

- Customers 10.308.321 14.347.354

- Post-dated checks and promissory notes 23.158.283 27.138.620

- Rediscount on trade payables (-) (39.347)               (80.608)

Short-Term Trade Payables 34.113.503 41.996.402

(*) Details are explained in Note 37.

Note 11– Other Receivables and Payables
31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Other Short-Term Receivables 12.343.662 899.109

Other Receivables from Related Parties (*) 12.094.803 -

- Gross Other Receivables from Related Parties 13.409.635 -

- Rediscount of Other Receivables from Related Parties (-) (1.314.832) -

Other Receivables 248.859 899.109

- Deposits and collaterals 184.635 253.412

- Receivables from Tax Offices 64.224 450.840

- Ismet Uzkut - 188.890

- Other Receivables - 5.967

Other Long-Term Receivables 245.031 231.262

Deposits and collaterals 245.031 231.262

Other Short-Term Payables 12.400 -

Trade Payables to Related Parties (*) 12.400 -

Other Long-Term Liabilities - -

(*) Details are explained in Note 37.

Note 12 – Financial Receivables and Payables
None. (December 31, 2011: None.)
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Note 13 – Inventories
31.12.2012 31.12.2011 

Raw materials and supplies 27.697.849 27.365.739

Work in progress 978.186 233.731

Finished goods 1.235.565 330.567

Commodities 1.338.136 1.581.959

Other inventories (goods in transit) ( a ) 8.295.373 13.651.686

Provisions for inventory impairment (-) (3.152.690) (2.254.679)

Total 36.392.419 40.909.003

(a) Goods in transit comprise goods invoiced by foreign suppliers and delivered to customs currently awaiting clearance by the Com-
pany as of the reporting date.
Changes in impairment provisions in the current reporting period are shown in the table below:

Provisions balance as of January 1 (2.254.679)

Provisions derived from mergers (697.109)

Provisions for current year (-) (200.902)

Provisions balance as of December 31 (3.152.690)

No inventories are used as collaterals for the Group’s liabilities. (Previous year: None).

Note 14 – Live Assets
None. (December 31, 2011: None.)

Note 15 – Assets from Ongoing Construction Contracts
None. (December 31, 2011: None.)

Note 16 – Investments Appraised Using the Equity Method of Accounting
None. (December 31, 2011: None.)

Note 17 – Investment Properties
Current Reporting Period:

01.01.2012 Inflows 
Inflow from 

Mergers
Outflows (a) Provision for 

impairment
  31.12.2012

Cost

Land 21.459.728 13.400 12.403 (4.650.000) - 16.835.531

Buildings 37.649.055 - - (16.318.229) (806.616) 20.524.210

Total 59.108.783 13.400 12.403 (20.968.229) (806.616) 37.359.741

(a) Cari dönemde ilişkili firmalardan İhlas Pazarlama A.Ş.’ye, 12.07.2012 tarihinde Denge Gayrimenkul Değerleme ve Danışmanlık 
A.Ş. tarafından düzenlenmiş ekspertiz raporunda belirtilen 19.000.000 TL değer üzerinden satılmıştır (Bkz. Not 37).
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Previous Reporting Period

01.01.2011 Inflows Outflows
Provision for 

impairment
  31.12.2011

Cost

Land 4.975.000 16.484.728 - - 21.459.728

Buildings 34.008.017 4.515.272 - (874.234) 37.649.055

Total 38.983.017 21.000.000 - (874.234) 59.108.783

Details of the inflows in 2011 are shown in the table below:

Tangible Fixed Assets
Inspection 

Dates
Net Inspection 

Values
Purchasing 

Price

Independent Section No 14(1) 17.01.2011 12.919.600 12.500.000

Independent Section No 17 (1) 12.01.2011 8.745.000 8.500.000

Total 21.664.600 21.000.000

 (1) Independent sections located on Istanbul province, Bahçelievler District, Yenibosna neighborhood, Plot no 24, Lot no 10913.
The total amounts of mortgages on the Group’s investment properties are $22,750,000 and 10,000,000 Turkish lira (31.12.2010: 
$22,750,000 and 10,000,000 Turkish lira).
The Group has generated rent income in the amount of 1,516,360 Turkish lira from its investment properties during the current 
reporting period. (Previous year: 1,079,964 Turkish lira).

Note 18 – Tangible Fixed Assets  
Current Reporting Period

01.01.2012 Inflows
Inflow from 

Mergers
Outflows 31.12.2012

Cost

Land, facilities, and underground setups 267.214 - - - 267.214

Machinery, plants, and equipment 4.662.022 280.459 - - 4.942.481

Furniture, fixtures, and vehicles 10.621.729 2.149.697 4.175 (63.434) 12.712.167

Total 15.550.965 2.430.156 4.175 (63.434) 17.921.862

Less accumulated depreciation

Facilities and underground setups (168.889) (34.917) - - (203.806)

Machinery, plants, and equipment (2.887.389) (627.251) - - (3.514.640)

Furniture, fixtures, and vehicles (8.136.787) (948.989) (5) 61.983 (9.023.798)

Total (11.193.065) (1.611.157) (5) 61.983 (12.742.244)

Net Tangible Fixed Assets 4.357.900    5.179.618
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Previous Reporting Period

01.01.2011 Inflows Outflows   31.12.2011

Cost

Land, facilities, and underground setups 267.214 - - 267.214

Machinery, plants, and equipment 28.810.425 509.996 (24.658.399) 4.662.022

Furniture, fixtures, and vehicles 10.211.076 440.566 (29.913) 10.621.729

Total 39.288.715 950.562 (24.688.312) 15.550.965

Less accumulated depreciation

Facilities and underground setups (115.456) (53.433) - (168.889)

Machinery, plants, and equipment (26.972.852) (532.020) 24.617.483 (2.887.389)

Furniture, fixtures, and vehicles (7.234.232) (930.513) 27.958 (8.136.787)

Total (34.322.540) (1.515.966) 24.645.441 (11.193.065)

Net Tangible Fixed Assets 4.966.175   4.357.900

There are no mortgages on the Group’s securities as of the date of the balance sheet. (December 31, 2011: €230,000)
Fixed asset acquired through financial leasing:

Current Reporting Period 01.01.2012 Inflows Outflows   31.12.2012

Machinery, plants, and equipment 2.169.749 - - 2.169.749

Total 2.169.749 - - 2.169.749

Less accumulated depreciation

Machinery, plants, and equipment (448.328) - (1.599.378)

Total (448.328) - (1.599.378)

Net Tangible Fixed Assets   570.371

Current Reporting Period 01.01.2011 Inflows Outflows   31.12.2011

Machinery, plants, and equipment 2.169.749 - - 2.169.749

Total 2.169.749 - - 2.169.749

Less accumulated depreciation

Machinery, plants, and equipment (855.783) (295.267) - (1.151.050)

Total (855.783) (295.267) - (1.151.050)

Net Tangible Fixed Assets 1.313.966   1.018.699
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The fully depreciated tangible fixed assets still used by the Company are given below:

31.12.2012

Facilities and underground setups 92.675

Machinery, plants, and equipment 2.559.258

Furniture, fixtures, and vehicles 6.886.495

Total 9.538.428

(*) In the current reporting period, there has been a fully depreciated furniture and fixture outflow in the amount of 61,983 Turkish 
lira (net asset value of “0”).

Note 19 – Intangible Fixed Assets
Current Reporting Period

01.01.2012 Inflows
Inflow from 

Mergers
Transfers 31.12.2012

Cost

Exploration Expenses 2.452.091 202.667 - 93.912 2.748.670

Rights 9.802.445 213.259 1 - 10.015.705

Other Intangible Fixed Assets 1.461.234 144.584 - (93.912) 1.511.906

Total 13.715.770 560.510 1 - 14.276.281

Less accumulated amortization

Exploration Expenses (1.757.779) (14.087) - (21.890) (1.793.756)

Rights (5.600.237) - - - (5.600.237)

Other Intangible Fixed Assets (1.045.673) (72.330) - 21.890 (1.096.113)

Total (8.403.689) (86.417) - - (8.490.106)

InNet Tangible Fixed Assets 5.312.081     5.786.175
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Previous Reporting Period

01.01.2011 Inflows Outflows 31.12.2011

Cost

Exploration Expenses 1.775.869 676.222  - 2.452.091

Rights 8.390.895 3.804.123 (2.392.573) 9.802.445

Other Intangible Fixed Assets 1.190.100 271.134 - 1.461.234

Total 11.356.864 4.751.479 (2.392.573) 13.715.770

Less accumulated amortization

Exploration Expenses (1.757.779) -   - (1.757.779)

Rights (7.777.028) (115.026) 2.291.817 (5.600.237)

Other Intangible Fixed Assets (928.862) (116.811) - (1.045.673)

Total (10.463.669) (231.837) 2.291.817 (8.403.689)

InNet Tangible Fixed Assets 893.195     5.312.081

There are no pledges, restrictions or mortgages on the intangible fixed assets of the Company. (December 31, 2011: None.)
The fully depreciated tangible fixed assets still used by the Company are given below:

31.12.2012

Exploration Expenses 1.757.779

Rights 3.139.170

Other Intangible Fixed Assets 897.946

Total 5.794.895

Note 20 – Goodwill
Flow charts of goodwill as of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 are shown below:

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Balance as of January 1 39.923.002 41.730.348

Inflow (Note 3) - -

Provisions for impairment during the current reporting period (2.202.497) (1.807.346)

Balance as of December 31 37.720.505 39.923.002

During the impairment analyses conducted regarding goodwill as of December 31, 2012 and on December 31, 2011, the Group has 
compared the goodwill carried on to the consolidated financial statements with the usage value of the unit that is generating cash. 
As a result, the provisions for the goodwill impairment of 2,202,497 Turkish lira in the current reporting period was related to other 
costs. (Previous year: 1,807,346 Turkish lira)
Assumptions used in the goodwill impairment test are as follows:

• Within the scope of the Financial Assets Pricing Model, a discount rate of Weighted Average of Cost of Capital calculated to be 
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between 13 percent and 18 percent was used.
• Projections have been carried to infinity with the calculated discount rate.
• Inflation rate estimations for the two years following the current reporting period were based on the expectations of the Central 
Bank of Republic of Turkey.
• The course of the industry in which the Company whose goodwill was calculated for sales income during the projection period 
was taken as the fundamental basis.

Goodwill carried onto the consolidated financial statements are derived from the acquisition of the companies below:

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Ihlas Madencilik 33.738.427 35.940.924

Mir Maden 3.982.078 3.982.078

Total goodwill 37.720.505 39.923.002

Note 21 – Government Incentives and Aid
None. (December 31, 2011: None.)

Notes 22-23 – Provisions, Contingent Assets and Liabilities, and Commitments
-Provisions:

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Long-Term 781.053 1.065.584

Warranty Provisions 692.503 963.314

Lawsuit Provisions 88.550 102.270

Transactions made within the reporting period for warranty and lawsuit provisions are shown in the table below:

Warranty Provisions 31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Balance as of January 1 963.314 2.033.681

Terminated Provisions (270.811) (1.070.367)

Balance as of December 31 692.503 963.314

Lawsuit Provisions 31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Balance as of January 1 102.270 103.948

Terminated Provisions (13.720) (1.678)

Balance as of December 31 88.550 102.270

-Contingent Assets and Liabilities and Commitments:
a) Guarantees, pledges and mortgages issued by the Group:
Tables related to Guarantees, Pledges and Mortgages (“GPM”) of the Company as of December 31, 2012, and December 31, 2011 are 
as follows:
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GPMs Issued by the Group   
(31.12.2012 )

USD Balance Euro Balance TL Balance
TOTAL

(TL)

A. Total GPMs issued in the Parent company’s own favor 4.651.126 766.008 74.187.484 84.280.003

B-1. Total GPMs issued in favor of subsidiaries and affiliates included in full consolidation of the Parent company - 27.200.000 - 63.966.240

B-2. Total GPMs subsidiaries and affiliates included within the full consolidation issued in their own favor and to each 
other 

- - 1.329.980 1.329.980

C. Total GPMs issued to cover other third-party obligations for the Group to sustain its regular trade operations - - 12.664.531 12.664.531

D. Total other GPMs issued 23.112.230 225.000 13.303.774 55.032.768

i.   Total GPMs issued in favor of parent company 22.850.000 - 13.208.000 53.940.410

ii.  Total GPMs issued in favor of other Group companies not covered in items B and C 262.230 225.000 95.774 1.092.358

iii. Total GPMs issued in favor of third parties not covered in item C - - - -

Total 27.763.356 28.191.008 101.485.769 217.273.522

Total Company Equity 218.126.699

Share of total GPMs issued by the Group in the Group's equity 25%

GPMs Issued by the Group 
(31.12.2011 )

USD Balance Euro Balance TL Balance
TOTAL

(TL)

A. Total GPMs issued in the Parent company’s own favor 629.848 1.650.303 57.563.273 62.786.005

B-1. Total GPMs issued in favor of subsidiaries and affiliates included in full consolidation of the Parent company - 27.200.000 - 66.471.360

B-2. Total GPMs subsidiaries and affiliates included within the full consolidation issued in their own favor and to each 
other 

- 250.000 1.232.449 1.843.399

C. Total GPMs issued to cover other third-party obligations for the Group to sustain its regular trade operations - - - -

D. Total other GPMs issued 23.112.230 225.000 14.687.774 58.894.320

i.   Total GPMs issued in favor of parent company 22.850.000 0 14.592.000 57.753.365

ii.  Total GPMs issued in favor of other Group companies not covered in items B and C 262.230 225.000 95.774 1.140.955

iii. Total GPMs issued in favor of third parties not covered in item C - - - -

Total 23.742.078 29.325.303 73.483.496 189.995.084

Total Company Equity 203.455.110

Share of total GPMs issued by the Group in the Group's equity 29%

Details regarding the disclosure on the contingent assets, liabilities, and commitments given in the GPM table above are listed below: 
- Detes Enerji, one of the Company’s subsidiaries, signed a purchase and consultancy services contract for €30,200,000 on May 15, 
2008, with the engineering firm Envirotherm GmbH based in Essen, Germany, for relocating (dismantling, transferring, reinstalling) 
and commissioning the production facilities comprising the British Gas Lurgi (BGL) gasifier and methanol units from Germany to 
Turkey to be used for energy production with German Lurgi patented BGL gasifiers to covert solid fuels to energy in a highly efficient 
and environmentally safe operation. The Company signed the contract as the guarantor. According to the provisions of this contract, 
the subsidiary Detes Enerji made an advanced payment of €3,000,000 to Envirotherm GmbH in 2008. The Company’s guarantee 
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amount resumes to be €27,200,000 as of the reporting date (December 31, 2011: €27,200,000). (Classified under the GPMs Issued in 
Favor of the Group companies included in the full consolidation.)
-Because of the loans used by the Company, the Company’s nominal share of 14,489,711 Turkish lira, which has a market value of 
57,299,273 Turkish lira, in its subsidiary Ihlas Madencilik A.Ş., has been blocked. (December 31, 2011: Nominal: 20,034,711 Turkish 
lira - Market Value: 57,299,273 TL) (Classified as GPMs issued in the parent company’s own favor.)
-The Company has issued a guarantee for 12,664,531 Turkish lira in the favor of its associate, Ihlas Pazarlama A.Ş., during the cur-
rent reporting period. (Classified as GPMs issued to cover other third-party obligations for the Group to sustain its regular trade 
operations.)
b) The amount of mortgages and other commitments received for the Company’s receivables is $28,451,000. This amount consists of 
collateral bills and checks received from branch companies and Ihlas Pazarlama A.Ş., with whom it has a distributorship agreement. 
(December 31, 2011: $28,451,000).
c-) A summary of lawsuit and foreclosure litigation in favor of the Company as of December 31, 2010, are shown in the table below:

Number of 
Shares

Amount

Pending litigation initiated by the Group 11 96.955

Foreclosure proceedings filed by the Group 10 466.122

Pending lawsuits against the Company (*) 29 7.172.522

Foreclosure proceedings filed against the Group 4 13.776

(*) Of the pending lawsuits against the Company, 6,821,384 Turkish lira is related to Ihlas Madencilik of the Group companies. Material 
events disclosure issued by Ihlas Madencilik on February 27, 2013 reads as follows: Previously, in our material events disclosure on April 
29, 2011, we had announced that our Company would pay its debt, capital and its accessories, in the sum of 5,210,784 Turkish lira to Toroslar Elek-
trik Dağıtım A.Ş. in 18 installments over 36 months, within the scope of the Law No. 6111 “Restructuring of Certain Receivables and Amendment to 
the Law of Social Insurance and General Health Insurance and Certain Other Laws and Decree Laws”. Later, with the material events disclosure we 
have issued on November 14, 2011, we had disclosed to the public that as a result of the examination of the systems of Toroslar Elektrik Dağıtım 
A.Ş., our debt was recalculated to be 4,184,267 Turkish lira. Since the day an installment plan has been applied to our debt, our Company has been 
paying its installments to Toroslar Elektrik Dağıtım A.Ş. regularly, in full compliance with the law. The sum of our remaining debt is 1,859,668 
Turkish lira. The first upcoming payment as of today will be on February 28, 2013; and will continue to be paid in the sum of 232,459 Turkish lira 
on every other month. There are a total of eight installments remaining and the payments will be completed on April 30, 2014. After our disclo-
sures summarized above, we have issued another disclosure on June 6, 2012 stating that a payment order from proceedings without judgment 
for 6,821,383.50 Turkish lira has been sent by the Gaziantep 12th Bailiff’s Office on behalf of Gaziantep Provincial Directorate of Toroslar Edaş. It 
has been understood that our Company has no other debt than the one to Toroslar Edaş, which has been restructured into installments within the 
scope of Law No. 6111 and is being paid, as described above. Furthermore, according to the research conducted by our Company, the debt in the 
amount of 6,821,383.50 Turkish lira described above belongs to Tampa Tekstil A.Ş., which is an affiliation of Okan Group who is the former owner 
of Okan Tekstil ve Sanayi Ticaret A.Ş., which was transferred over to and merged with former Ihlas Madencilik A.Ş. Moreover, Tampa Tekstil had 
restructured its debt in line with Law No 6111; however, because of the disruptions in the payments, the installment restructuring was abolished. 
All of these findings have been shared with the public in the disclosure dated June 6, 2012 and the execution for debt was stopped by contest. 
Based on the new written notice we have received, an appeal has been filed by the Gaziantep Provincial Directorate of Toroslar Edaş through the 
Basic Commercial Court of Gaziantep against the contest we have described above. We would like to state that although Tampa Tekstil, who was 
the lessee of our Company between November 5, 2003 and March 29, 2006, wanted to sign a subscription agreement with Toroslar Edaş in 2003, 
Toroslar Edaş decided not to sign a subscription agreement. Later, Tampa Tekstil contested against this decision of Toroslar Edaş by applying to the 
administrative court and was granted a void of judgment. Thus, Tampa Tekstil was granted the right to sign a subscription agreement retrospec-
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tively for past periods as well. Including the time elapsed during the proceedings, Tampa Tekstil has consumed electricity throughout the period 
of the lease. This consumption was declared to Toroslar Edaş by Tampa Tekstil, and a court ruling was issued. Finally, as described above, Tampa 
Tekstil had restructured all of the debt incurred from its usage within the scope of Law No. 6111, separately from our Company’s debts. Although 
Tampa Tekstil and Toroslar Edaş have mutually signed a protocol, it is very clear that Toroslar Edaş is unlawfully asking for the payment of this 
debt from our Company, whose name or signature is not on the aforementioned protocol. Our Company does not have such a debt. Since asking 
for the payment of another company’s debt to be done by our Company is unjust and unlawful, our Company will take the necessary legal actions 
on time.” Since it is highly likely that we will win this ongoing lawsuit, we have not set aside any provisions for it.
The Company reserved total provisions of 88,550 Turkish lira (December 31, 2011: 102,270 Turkish lira) for the lawsuits brought 
against the Company as of December 31, 2012, and did not set aside any provisions for lawsuits where the probability of winning the 
case was strong. 

Note 24 – Employee Benefits
31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Short-Term - -

Long-Term 2.539.085      1.897.987      

Termination Benefit Provisions 2.539.085 1.897.987      

According to the Labor Act, the Company is legally required to pay termination benefits to an employee who has been terminated for 
no particular reason, drafted into the military, retired upon reaching retirement age after 25 years of service for males and 20 years 
for females, or who died after a twelve-month employment period (minimum). As of December 31, 2012, the termination benefit 
amount is equivalent to one month’s salary, not to exceed 3,033.98 Turkish lira per year of service (December 31, 2011: 2,365.16 TL).
Currently, no regulations exist for retirement commitments aside from the legal requirements delineated above. No funds were allo-
cated for such a liability since there are no requirements for allocating such funds. Termination benefit provisions were based on the 
estimated value of the Company’s possible future liabilities arising from employee retirements as of the reporting date. 
IAS 19 “Employee Benefits” requires companies to use the actuarial valuation method for determining the defined benefit plan 
obligations. Accordingly, actuarial assumptions and current legal obligations were used for each company to determine the total 
obligation.

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Discount rate 3.81% 4.25%

Non-payment rate of severance provisions  5% 4%

(*) The effect of the discount amount, which was altered due to the changes in the actuarial assumptions, on the provision for sev-
erance pay amount is 122,680 Turkish lira.

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Provisions balance as of January 1 1.897.987      1.092.263      

Payments in the period (166.295) (172.728)

Increases/(Decreases) in the period 807.393 978.452

Year-end provisions 2.539.085 1.897.987      

Note 25 - Retirement Benefit Plans
Currently, no regulations exist for retirement commitments aside from the legal requirements delineated in Note 24.
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Note 26- Other Assets and Liabilities
31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Other Current Assets 8.144.102 14.549.302

Advance Payments for Purchase Orders 4.564.814 10.584.758

- Advance Payments to Related Parties 96.868 -

- Other 4.467.946 10.584.758

Carry Forward Sales Tax (KDV) 3.046.728 2.944.543

Work Related Advance Payments 451.145 894.743

Prepaid Expenses 80.059 92.927

Prepaid Taxes and Funds 1.356 32.331

Other Fixed Assets 36.851 56.313

Advance Payments 36.851 56.313

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Short-Term Other Liabilities 5.030.348 4.204.816

Advances Received for Purchase Orders 1.232.020 109.030

- Advances Received from Related Parties 45.877 32.895

- Other 1.186.143 76.135

TEDAŞ late fees payable (*) 1.394.756 1.450.424

Taxes, Duties and Other Withholding Payables 1.173.697 1.016.606

Payables to Employees 617.162 553.314

Deferred Government Receivables on an Installment Plan 482.715 921.224

Other 129.998 38.641

Provisions for Other Expenses and Liabilities - 115.577

Long-Term Other Liabilities 606.089 2.346.406

TEDAŞ late fees payable (*) 464.919 1.933.898

Deferred Government Receivables on an Installment Plan 141.170 412.508

(*) Consists of the debt of Ihlas Madencilik, a Group company, to Tedaş. These debts have been restructured into installments in 2011 
within the scope of the Law No. 6111 “Restructuring of Certain Receivables and Amendment to the Law of Social Insurance and 
General Health Insurance and Certain Other Laws and Decree Laws”.
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Note 27 - Equities
A. Issued Capital
The Company’s registered and issued capital consists of 19,137,000,200 shares, each at a registered nominal value of 1 kuruş.
As of December 31, 2012, and December 31, 201, both the Company’s registered and issued capital and capital structure were as 
follows:

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Title Share (%)
          Share 
Amount (TL) 

Share (%)
       Share 

Amount (TL) 

Ihlas Pazarlama Yatırım Holding A.Ş. (1) 17,60 33.681.000 17,60 33.681.000

Ihlas Holding A.Ş. (1) (2) 7,32 14.000.000 7,32 14.000.000

Open to the Public 74,83 143.205.723 74,83 143.205.723

Other 0,25 483.278 0,25 483.278

Total 100,00 191.370.001 100,00 191.370.001

(1) Real and legal entities that own the capital indirectly: 

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Title Share (%)
Share Amount 

(TL) 
Share (%)

Share Amount 
(TL) 

Enver Ören (3) 2,48 4.731.793 2,69 5.145.605

Open to the Public 20,68 39.581.890 19,95 38.171.510

Other 1,76 3.367.317 2,28 4.363.885

TOTAL 24,92 47.681.000 24,92 47.681.000

(2) The Parent Company of the Group, Ihlas Holding A.Ş., issued a lot of 8,000,000 (4.18 percent) company shares to Lehman Broth-
ers as a deposit according to an options contract ending on July 24, 2009. Research and analyses conducted by Ihlas Holding A.Ş. 
revealed that Lehman Brothers Holdings Inc., New York, filed for bankruptcy and that the options contract of Ihlas Holding A.Ş. with 
Lehman Brothers Finance S.A. was in a state of insolvency. Accordingly, Ihlas Holding A.Ş. officially initiated the process for the 
return of the lot of 8,000,000 company shares (IHEVA) issued to Lehman Brothers Finance S.A. as a deposit on November 28, 2008. 
The Parent Company of the Group, Ihlas Holding A.Ş., filed for an interim court injunction on the 8,000,000-share deposit to prevent 
any possible risks; the court granted an interim injunction on March 6, 2009. Following the injunction request, within the allowed 
time frame, on March 13, 2009, Ihlas Holding A.Ş. filed for the return of the deposit shares, or for the payment of the value of the 
shares on the date of return if unable to do so.  The case has ended on April 16, 2012; and the mentioned shares have been returned 
to Ihlas Holding A.Ş. 
The Company’s shareholders elect two, three, or four of the Members of the Board of Directors, depending on whether the Board 
consists of three, five, or seven members, respectively, from the candidates nominated by shareholders from group (A). The Compa-
ny’s shareholders elect one or two of the auditors, depending on whether the shareholders choose to appoint one or three auditors, 
respectively, from the candidates nominated by the shareholders from group (A). The other auditor is elected by the shareholders 
from among the nominated shareholders present at the General Shareholders Meeting.
(3) Enver Ören, one of the indirect shareholders of the Company, has passed away after the date of the balance sheet. The indirect 
shareholder structure has not yet been clarified as of the date of the report.

Footnotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Footnotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 31, 2012

Unless otherwise stated, the amounts are in Turkish lira (TL)

İhlas Ev Aletleri İmalat Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.



İHLAS EV ALETLERİ ANNUAL REPORT 2012106

The Company Board of Directors has applied to CMB on February 14, 2013 regarding the amendment of the Articles of Association 
in order to comply with the Turkish Commercial Code No. 6102. Details regarding this issue can be found in Note 40.
The distribution of the Company’s preferred shares (Group A shares) is as follows: 

Partner Name / Title Series Group Bearer/ Registered Number of Shares AMOUNT Rights

Ihlas Pazarlama Yatırım Holding A.Ş. I A Bearer 4,049,920 40,499
Elect Majority of the Members 
of the Board of Directors and 

Board of Auditors

Ahmet Mücahid Ören I A Bearer 647,040 6,470
Elect Majority of the Members 
of the Board of Directors and 

Board of Auditors

Ali Tubay Gölbaşı I A Bearer 156,180 1,562
Elect Majority of the Members 
of the Board of Directors and 

Board of Auditors

 

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

B. Stock Issue Premiums 6.534.581 6.534.581

C. Revaluation Reserves - -

D. Cross-Ownership Capital Adjustments (-) - -

E. Currency Exchange Differences - -

F. Other Equity Reserves (*) 4.890.469 4.890.469

 
(*) This is the share of the 7,856,558 Turkish lira has been liberated as the “additional capital contribution from the merger” as a result 
of the capital decrease in the process of the merger between Bayındır Madencilik A.Ş. and Ihlas Madencilik A.Ş., a Group company.

G. Restricted Reserves from Profits
Allocated as primary reserves is 5 percent of the net income in the statutory financial statements until this percentage reaches 20 
percent of the total revalued issued capital. Allocated as supplementary reserves are 10 percent of the total dividends that exceed 5 
percent of the revalued capital. According to the Turkish Commercial Code, restricted reserves may be used only for net losses and 
may not be used for any other purpose so long as the reserves do not exceed 50 percent of the issued capital.

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Reserves from Profit 2.865.403 1.887.847

Statutory Reserves 1.753.558 1.753.558

Special Reserves (*) 1.111.845 134.289

(*) Of the special reserves, 933,433 Turkish lira is derived from the company merger during the current reporting period. It constitutes 
as the capital reserves that have been paid to the company by the shareholder so that the capital is not lost according to the Turkish 
Commercial Code. Of this amount, 41,123 Turkish lira consists of TUBITAK Research and Development Incentive and the remaining 
134,289 Turkish lira consists of other profit reserves.
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H. Profit/(Loss) from Previous Years
According to established practices before January 1, 2008, “Capital, Shares, Issue Premiums, Statutory Reserves, Special Reserves, 
and Excess Reserves” under equity were recognized as book values on the balance sheet after adjusting the financial statements 
according to the inflation rate. Moreover, the totals of adjusted values of these items were recognized as book values in the “Inflation 
Adjustment Differences in Equity” account within the equity total. The balances in the “Equity Adjustment Differences” account 
representing contributions from every equity account would only be used in capital increases through bonus issues or as the offset 
account for loss deductions, while the recognized values of excess reserves would be used in capital increases through bonus issues 
as well as in cash dividends or loss deductions.
“Issued Capital, Restricted Reserves from Profit and Share Premiums” must be recognized according to statutory book values 
according to the Capital Markets Board Communiqué Serial XI, No: 29, effective January 1, 2008, and the explanations of board re-
garding the Communiqué. Valuation differences arising from the implementation of this Communiqué must be recognized as book 
values under one of the following conditions:
- Reflected in a new “Equity Adjustment Differences” account to be added after the “Issued Capital” account if arising from “Issued 
Capital” but not yet reflected in the issued capital; or
- Recognized as the book value under the “Profit/loss from Previous Years” account if arising from “Restricted Reserves from Prof-
it” or “Share Premiums”, but has yet to be used to source dividends and capital increases.
ilişkilendirilmesi gerekmektedir. Other equity items must be recognized as book values specified by the Capital Markets Board Fi-
nancial Reporting Standards.
Profit and loss transactions of the Company in the current reporting period are shown below:

31.12.2012

Balance as of January 1 3.467.180

Profit / loss from previous year (26.171.540)

Effect of mergers and effective share adjustments of subsidiary (2.207.412)

Balance as of December 31 (24.911.772)

According to Capital Markets Board (CMB) Decree No. 02/51 published in the “Weekly Bulletin” No. 2010/4, effective January 27, 
2010, there will be no mandatory minimum payout ratio for companies with stocks publicly traded on the stock exchanges. The Com-
pany decided to distribute profits within the scopes of the provisions of the companies’ Articles of Associations, the profit distribution 
policies disclosed to the public, and the CMB Communiqué Serial: IV, No: 27 on “Principles Regarding Distribution of Dividends and 
Interim Dividends to be Followed by Publicly Held Joint Stock Corporations Subject to Capital Market Law”. As a result, the Compa-
ny’s primary dividend cannot be less than 20 percent of the distributable profit remaining after statutory reserves, taxes, fund and 
financial payments, and previous year losses, if any, have been deducted from the current year profit. 
Moreover, effective January 1, 2008, should the primary dividend be less than 5 percent of the Company’s issued capital; this amount 
can be retained within the Company instead of being distributed. After statutory reserves, taxes, fund and financial payments, and 
previous year losses, if any, have been deducted from the Company’s current year profit based on IAS/IFRS and statutory accounting 
records, the Company does not have any distributable profit. The calculations are shown in the table below:
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According to 
IAS/IFRS

According 
to statutory 

records (solo)

Period profit (excluding minority shares) 26.260.605 351.780 

Taxes To Be Paid (5.968.557) - 

Current Net Profit/(Loss) 20.292.048 351.780 

Loss from Previous Years (24.911.772) (4.366.843)

Statutory reserves - -

Net distributable period profit - -

I. Minority Shares
The transactions of the Company’s minority shares for the relevant periods are depicted in the table below:

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Opening balance 21.476.572 26.574.616

Effect of mergers and effective share adjustments of subsidiary (1.729.838) (8.311.307)

Non-Parent Profit/(Loss) (2.660.765) 247.174

Additional equity capital from the merger (Note 3) - 2.966.089

Balance as of December 31 17.085.969 21.476.572

Note 28 - Sales and Cost of Sales
Jan 1 - Dec 31, 

2012
Jan 1 - Dec 31, 

2011

Domestic Sales 83.769.829 85.204.135

Export Sales 17.461.056 14.145.059

Other Sales 330.530 172.555

Total Gross Sales 101.561.415 99.521.749

Sales Discounts (-) (21.055) (13.209)

Net Sales 101.540.360 99.508.540

Cost of Sales (-) (90.272.373) (92.807.844)

GROSS SALES PROFIT 11.267.987 6.700.696 
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Cost of Sales of the Group are shown below:

Jan 1 - Dec 31, 
2012

Jan 1 - Dec 31, 
2011

Raw materials, supplies, and merchandise (88.402.654) (89.566.489)

Employee costs (3.192.174) (3.183.426)

Depreciation and amortization costs (1.135.478) (1.164.451)

Meal and transportation costs (342.645) (343.683)

Electricity and heating costs (146.992) (169.716)

Rent costs (662.476) (401.644)

Other (323.863) (709.290)

Transfer of delay interest related to purchases from cost of sales to financial costs 3.933.909 2.730.855

Cost of Sales (90.272.373) (92.807.844)

Units sold in the reporting period for each main sales group of Ihlas Ev Aletleri İmalat Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi are as follows:

Product Groups
Jan 1 - Dec 31, 

2012
Jan 1 - Dec 31, 

2011

Home Appliances Group Quantity (Units) Quantity (Units)

Electric Water Heaters Group 163.025 166.580   

Water Treatment Group 94.833 99.305

Cleaning Robot 57.056 69.190   

Electric Heaters 25.401 22.221

Carpet Cleaners - Vacuum Cleaners 9.146 6.182

Tea Sets 5.456 5.839

Scales 1.302 2.283
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Moreover, the Company sells products that it does not produce but buys from the market, like ventilators, blenders, counter-top 
stoves, electric heaters, ventilation hoods, grills, humidifying coolers, irons, etc.
Units produced in the reporting period for each main production group of Ihlas Ev Aletleri İmalat Sanayi ve Ticaret Anonim Şirketi 
are as follows:

Product Groups
Jan 1 - Dec 31, 

2012
Jan 1 - Dec 31, 

2011

Home Appliances Group Birim (Adet) Birim (Adet)

Electric Water Heaters Group 164.002 167.010

Water Treatment Group 95.190 99.320

Cleaning Robot 57.506 69.191

Electric Heaters 25.079 22.550

Carpet Cleaners - Vacuum Cleaners 8.459 6.870

Tea Sets 5.586 5.841

Scales 1.302 2.283

Note 29 – Operating Costs
Jan 1 - Dec 31, 

2012
Jan 1 - Dec 31, 

2011

Marketing, Sales, and Distribution Costs (2.564.585) (2.385.887)

General Administrative Costs (9.313.044) (9.655.228)

Research and Development Costs (1.230.119) (1.032.997)

Total Operating Costs (13.107.748) (13.074.112)

Note 30 – Segmented Costs
Jan 1 - Dec 31, 

2012
Jan 1 - Dec 31, 

2011

Marketing, Sales, and Distribution Costs (2.564.585) (2.385.887)

Employee Costs (774.051) (721.044)

Warranty Costs (558.410) (751.484)

Export Costs (395.579) (98.392)

Distribution and Transportation Costs (369.610) (368.036)

Rent Costs (191.034) -

Advertisement Costs (29.353) (32.089)

TSE Patent vb. Costs (25.017) (30.257)

Utilities (Electricity, water, heating) Costs (21.273) (22.287)

Quality Certification Costs (19.763) (82.425)

Domestic and International Travel Costs (5.583) (61.095)
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Free Sample Distribution Costs (241) (15.695)

Other Sales and Marketing Costs (174.671) (203.083)

General Administrative Costs (9.313.044) (9.655.228)

Employee Costs (4.095.824) (3.718.900)

Notary Public, Taxes, Duties and Other Such Costs (750.482) (474.551)

Termination Benefit Provision Costs (647.806) (839.279)

Depreciation and Amortization Costs (562.096) (583.352)

Building Cleaning and Security Costs (536.036) (680.824)

Work Related Advance Payments Provision Costs (499.165) -

Auditing and Consultancy Costs (299.125) (582.651)

Repair, Maintenance, and Energy Costs (278.036) (156.361)

Rent Costs (244.401) (720.379)

Doubtful Receivables Provision Costs (241.779) -

Domestic and International Travel Costs (167.756) (87.182)

General Assembly, CRA, and ISE Listing Costs (150.040) (350.296)

Insurance Costs (106.493) (63.966)

Communication and Stationary Costs (62.347) (59.527)

Lawsuit Costs - (523.576)

Other General Administrative Costs (671.658) (814.384)

Research and Development Costs (1.230.119) (1.032.997)

Employee Costs (810.180) (834.159)

Project Costs (344.664) (151.572)

Rent Costs (59.188) (30.000)

Other Exploration Costs (16.087) (17.266)

The details of depreciation and amortization costs are given below:

Jan 1 - Dec 31, 
2012

Jan 1 - Dec 31, 
2011

Cost of Sales (1.135.478) (1.164.451)

General Administrative Costs (562.096) (583.352)

Total (1.697.574) (1.747.803)
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Detail of employee costs in the operational costs table is as follows:

Jan 1 - Dec 31, 
2012

Jan 1 - Dec 31, 
2011

Gross Salary Costs (5.102.945) (4.621.007)

Other Costs (577.110) (653.096)

Total (5.680.055) (5.274.103)

Details of the termination benefits provision costs are as follows:

Jan 1 - Dec 31, 
2012

Jan 1 - Dec 31, 
2011

Cost of Sales (159.587) (139.173)

General Administrative Costs (647.806) (839.279)

Total (807.393) (978.452)

Note 31 - Other Operating Income and Costs
Jan 1 - Dec 31, 

2012
Jan 1 - Dec 31, 

2011

Other Income: 43.265.008 12.983.376

Appraisal and Sales Profit of Financial Investments 40.201.920 5.130.256

Terminated Warranty Provisions 270.811 2.033.681

Terminated Lawsuit Provisions 13.720 103.948

Other Terminated Provisions 303.801 151.753

Rent Income 1.516.360 1.079.964

Government Incentives (Social Security Institution Treasury Discount) 347.561 370.314

Terminated Provisions for Long Term Financial Investment Impairments 148.506 -

Securities Sales Profit 10.845 777.019

Terminated Electricity Payables - 2.591.167

Returned Lawsuit Fees - 274.899

Other 451.484 470.375
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Jan 1 - Dec 31, 
2012

Jan 1 - Dec 31, 
2011

Other Costs: (12.571.495) (34.357.930)

Impairment provisions for financial Investments and Sales Losses (7.480.711) (28.690.757)

Goodwill Impairment Provisions (2.202.497) (1.807.346)

Securities Sales Loss (1.968.347) -

Impairment Provisions for Held-for-Sale Assets (806.616) (874.234)

Commission Fees (47.862) -

Impairment Provisions for Long Term Financial Investments (32.802) (177.375)

Warranty Provisions - (963.314)

Tax Costs in Scope of Law no 6111 - (963.143)

Lawsuit Costs - (305.876)

Doubtful Trade Receivables Provisions - (226.209)

Lawsuit Provisions - (102.270)

Other (32.660) (247.406)

Note 32 - Financial Income
Jan 1 - Dec 31, 

2012
Jan 1 - Dec 31, 

2011

Financial Income : 14.166.108 11.338.316

Financial Income from Forward Sales 8.087.632 6.808.150

Currency Exchange Difference Income 4.435.292 2.398.029

Interest Income 1.631.205 2.066.377

Profit from Sales of Securities 11.979 65.760

Note 33 – Financial Costs
Jan 1 - Dec 31, 

2012
Jan 1 - Dec 31, 

2011

Financial Costs : (19.420.020) (15.633.495)

Interest Costs (9.764.195) (3.576.019)

Financial Cost from Forward Purchases (6.297.676) (6.577.624)

Currency Exchange Difference Cost (3.358.149) (5.479.852)

Footnotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Footnotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 31, 2012

Unless otherwise stated, the amounts are in Turkish lira (TL)

İhlas Ev Aletleri İmalat Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.



İHLAS EV ALETLERİ ANNUAL REPORT 2012114

Note 34 – Held-for-Sale Fixed Assets and Discontinued Operations
A. Held-for-Sale Fixed Assets
None. (December 31, 2011: None.)

B. Discontinued Operations
None. (January 1 - December 31, 2011: None.)

Note 35 – Tax Assets and Liabilities
A. Tax Assets and Liabilities for the Current Reporting Period
Corporate tax rate is 20 percent. 
Profit shares (dividends) paid to domestic organizations in Turkey, and to organizations that generate income through a business or a 
permanent agency office in Turkey, are not subject to withholding tax. All other dividend payments are subject to a 15 percent with-
holding tax. Profits transferred to capital are not considered profit distributions and no withholding taxes apply. Companies pay 20 
percent in estimated income withholding taxes on their quarterly financial income. Quarterly estimated withholding taxes apply to the 
year the estimated taxes are paid and are deducted from corporate taxes on the income tax returns submitted the subsequent year. 
With the exception of dividends received from investment partnership shares and from mutual fund participation certificates, divi-
dends earned from equity investments in another full taxpaying company are exempt from corporate taxation.
For income generated from the sale of real estate, affiliated shares, founding shares, utilization shares and preemption rights carried 
in the Company’s assets for a minimum of two full years, 75 percent of the income is exempt from corporate taxation. To use this 
exemption, this income must be kept in a reserve account, with no withdrawals for five years and with no cost of sales collected within 
two calendar years after the year of sale.
According to Turkish tax laws, financial losses reported on tax returns may be deducted up to five years from the yearly income of a 
company. 
As of December 31, 2012, and December 31, 2011, the main components of tax expenses are as follows:

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Year-end Profit Tax Liabilities - -

Income Statement
Jan 1 - Dec 31, 

2012
Jan 1 - Dec 31, 

2011

Reporting period corporate tax provisions - -

Deferred taxes (Cost)/Income (5.968.557) 6.118.783 

Tax reflected on the income statement 6.118.783 

B. Deferred Taxes Assets and Liabilities
The Group calculates deferred tax assets and liabilities on income, taking into consideration the effects of temporary differences 
that arise from different treatments of balance sheet items in the financial statements according to IFRS and statutory reporting 
regulations. These temporary differences generally arise from the differences in revenue and expense recognition in different annual 
reporting periods according to the IFRS and tax codes.
On the deferred tax assets and liabilities arising from temporary differences, the tax rate to apply (calculated by the liabilities meth-
od) is 20 percent.
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As of December 31, 2012, and December 31, 2011, the breakdown of accumulated temporary differences and deferred tax assets 
and liabilities using the tax rates in effect are as follows:

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Total
Deferred Tax 

Assets /
Total

Deferred Tax 
Asset /

Temporary 
Differences

(Liabilities)
Temporary 

Differences
(Liabilities)

Deferred Tax Liabilities        

Financial assets appraisal (16.326.448) (3.265.289) (1.411.329) (282.266)

Temporary differences for tangible assets (1.898.030) (379.606) (7.747.903) (1.549.581)

Payables rediscount (70.749) (14.150) (83.718) (16.743)

Temporary differences for intangible assets (61.083) (12.217) (137.224) (27.445)

Gross deferred tax liabilities (18.356.310) (3.671.262) (9.380.174) (1.876.035)

Deferred tax assets

Temporary differences for intangible assets 5.582.348 1.116.469 7.725.187 1.545.037

Receivables rediscount 4.278.587 855.717 3.553.682 710.736

Termination benefit provisions 2.539.085 507.817 1.897.987 379.597

Investment discount (Research and Development Discount) 1.878.939 375.788 - -

Inventories impairment provisions 1.267.283 253.457 1.112.081 222.417

Interests recognized as cost 918.031 183.606 - -

Warranty provision costs 692.503 138.501 963.314 192.663

Work related advance payments provision costs 527.262 105.452 28.097 5.619

Loan interest accrued 330.222 66.044 - -

Financial asset impairment provisions 202.500 40.500 16.571.830 3.314.366

Doubtful receivables provisions 184.734 36.947 283.254 56.651

Lawsuit provisions 88.550 17.710 102.270 20.454

Temporary differences for tangible assets - - 409.334 81.867

Deposits and collaterals - - 24.821 4.964

Financial loss not discounted 16.545.523 3.309.105 23.230.355 4.646.072

Gross deferred tax assets 35.035.567 7.007.113 55.902.212 11.180.443

Net deferred tax assets 16.679.257 3.335.851 46.522.038 9.304.408 

The transactions for net deferred tax assets are shown below:

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Balance as of January 1 9.304.408 3.185.625

Deferred taxes income/(cost) recognized in the income statement (5.968.557) 6.118.783

Balance as of December 31 3.335.851 9.304.408
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For the year ending on December 31, 2012, the Group calculated deferred tax assets for deductible financial losses of 16,545,523 
Turkish lira (December 31, 2011: 23,230,355 Turkish lira) shown in the consolidated financial statements prepared as per Capital 
Markets Board Financial Reporting Standards. 
As of December 31, 2012, maturities of these financial losses are as follows:

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

2012 - 823.548

2013 2.309.760 5.565.550

2014 4.456.065 5.868.470

2015 7.232.408 6.642.390

2016 2.547.290 4.330.397

Total 16.545.523 23.230.355

Deferred tax assets are reflected in the financial records to the extent potential financial profit exists, benefiting all deductible tem-
porary differences. As of December 31, 2012, the Group’s deductible financial losses, for which no deferred tax assets are calculat-
ed, amount to 4,942,523 Turkish lira (December 31, 2011: None) with maturities as follows: 

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

2013 2.309.760 -

2014 1.708.126 -

2015 684.599 -

2016 97.637 -

2017 142.401 -

Total 4.942.523 -
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Note 36 – Earnings per Share
As of December 31, 2012, and December 31, 2011, the “weighted average units of stock” and the “profit and loss per share” figures 
for the Company’s stock were calculated as follows:

Jan 1 - Dec 31, 
2012

Jan 1 - Dec 31, 
2011

Earnings/(loss) per share from ongoing operations:

Parent company’s share of net profit/(loss) from ongoing operations for the reporting period 20.292.048 (26.171.540)

"Weighted average units of stock" with 1 kuruş nominal value each 19.137.000.138 19.137.000.138 

Earnings/(loss) per share from ongoing operations (kuruş) 0,106 (0,137)

Earnings/(loss) per share:

Income/(loss) for the period 17.631.283 (25.924.366)

Year-end minority shareholder shares of net profit/(loss) (Note 27) (2.660.765) 247.174

Year-end parent company’s share of net profit/(loss) 20.292.048 (26.171.540)

"Weighted average units of stock" with 1 kuruş nominal value each 19.137.000.138 19.137.000.138 

Earnings /(loss) per share (kuruş) 0,106 (0,137)

No diluted earnings per share were computed since the Group has no common stock subject to dilution potential.
(December 31, 2011: None.)
No dividends were accrued in the current annual reporting period. (December 31, 2009: None.)

Note 37 – Related Party Disclosures
A) Group’s balances with related parties as of December 31, 2012, and December 31, 2011, are shown in the tables below:

 Trade Receivables 31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Ihlas Pazarlama A.Ş. 13.514.707 2.591.507

Ihlas Gazetecilik A.Ş. 122.007 122.007

Ihlas Fuar Hizmetleri A.Ş 121.797 121.797

Ihlas Haber Ajansı A.Ş. 100.824 72.750

Ihlas Finans Kurumu A.Ş. (in liquidation) 22.792 22.792

Iletişim Magazin Gazetecilik A.Ş. 22.063 -

Ihlas Net A.Ş. 20.277 - 

Ihlas Iletişim Hizmetleri A.Ş. 11.915 5.127

Promaş Pro. Medya Rek. ve Film Paz. Hiz. A.Ş. 7.823 7.823

Kuzuluk Kaplıca Tur. A.Ş. 5.894 1.466

Ihlas Gelişim Yayıncılık A.Ş. 1.032 1.032

İhlas Enerji Üretim Dağıtım ve Tic. A.Ş. - 728

Detes Maden Ltd. Şti. - 728

TOTAL 13.951.131 2.947.757
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 Trade Payables 31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Ihlas Pazarlama A.Ş. 472.620 472.620

İhlas Genel Ant. Nk. Tic. A.Ş. 99.636 44.571

Şifa Yemek ve Gıda Üretim Tesisleri Tic. A.Ş. 75.869 41.074

Ihlas Pazarlama Yatırım Holding A.Ş. 22.688 16.426

Ihlas Holding A.Ş. 8.467 8.467

İhlas Net Ltd. Şti. 3.689 3.869

Ihlas Gazetecilik A.Ş. 3.270 3.270

Iletişim Magazin Gazetecilik A.Ş. 7 -

KPT Lojistik Taşımacılık Tur. Rek. Paz. İç ve Dış Tic.A.Ş. - 739

TOTAL 686.246 591.036

Other Receivables 31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Ihlas Pazarlama A.Ş. (a) 12.094.803 -

TOTAL 12.094.803 -

(a) Receivables generated as a result of selling the land and buildings in Gaziantep recorded under the Group’s assets to Ihlas 
Pazarlama A.Ş. during the current reporting period.

Other Payables (Payables to Shareholder) 31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Ali Tubay Gölbaşı 12.400 -

Advance Payments for Purchase Orders 31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Ihlas Gazetecilik A.Ş. 96.635 -

Şifa Yemek ve Gıda Üretim Tesisleri Tic. A.Ş. 233 -

TOTAL 96.868 -

Advances Received for Purchase Orders 31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Ihlas Holding A.Ş. 45.132 32.895

Tgrt Haber TV A.Ş. 745 -

TOTAL 45.877 32.895
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Benefits Provided to Key Management Employees
Key management employees are those persons having authority and responsibility for planning, directing, and controlling the activi-
ties of the entity, directly or indirectly, including all directors, whether executive or otherwise, of the Company. There are two types of 
benefits, short-term and long-term, provided to these employees. Short-term remuneration benefits consist of salary, social security, 
bonuses, paid leave, and per diem payments. These types of short-term benefits are reported under “Other Short-term Liabilities”. 
Termination benefits provided in the event of employee termination comprise the Group’s termination benefits obligations. These bene-
fits are reported under “Employee Benefits Related Provisions”. The total short-term benefits provided to key employees from January 
1 to December 31, 2012, amounted to 588,913 Turkish lira (January 1-December 31, 2011: 614,247 Turkish lira). The total termination 
benefits provided or to be provided to key management employees who were terminated during the period of January 1 to December 
31, 2012, amounted to 182,863 Turkish lira (January 1-December 31, 2011: 120,359 Turkish lira).
B) Purchases and sales between the Group and its related parties in the years January 1 to December 31, 2012, and January 1 to De-
cember 31, 2011, are as follows:

Purchases
Jan 1 - Dec 31, 

2012
Jan 1 - Dec 31, 

2011

İhlas Genel Ant. Nk. Tic. A.Ş. 1.344.974 683.426

Şifa Yemek ve Gıda Üretim Tesisleri Tic. A.Ş. 528.858 237.022

Ihlas Holding A.Ş. 492.907 401.422

Ihlas Gazetecilik A.Ş. 466.618 485.855

KPT Lojistik Taşımacılık Tur. Rek. Paz. İç ve Dış Tic. A.Ş. 341.749 65.158

Ihlas Pazarlama A.Ş. 70.747 145.132

Ihlas Net A.Ş. 22.317 22.317

Iletişim Magazin A.Ş. 4.625 3.043

Ihlas Pazarlama Yatırım Holding A.Ş. 3.853 14.455

Ihlas Dış Ticaret A.Ş. 3.400 -

Kuzuluk Kaplıca Tur. A.Ş. 148 65

İhlas Net Ltd. Şti. 44 336

Alternatif Medya Görsel İletişim Sis. Ltd. Şti. - 5.439

TOTAL 3.280.240 2.063.670

Sales
Jan 1 - Dec 31, 

2012
Jan 1 - Dec 31, 

2011

Ihlas Pazarlama A.Ş. 65.897.611 63.058.069

Ihlas Holding A.Ş. Cyprus Agency 78.312 -

Kuzuluk Kaplıca Tur. A.Ş. 4.125 5.215

İhlas Genel Ant. Nk. Tic. A.Ş. - 2.283

Ihlas Gazetecilik A.Ş. - 216

Ihlas Holding A.Ş. - 79

KPT Lojistik Taşımacılık Tur. Rek. Paz. İç ve Dış Tic. A.Ş. - 67

TOTAL 65.980.048 63.065.929
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C) Interest, rent and other such invoices received from and paid to related parties from January 1 to December 31, 2012 and January 
1 to December 31, 2011 are as follows:

Interest Invoices Issued and Received
Jan 1 - Dec 31, 

2012
Jan 1 - Dec 31, 

2011

Interest invoice issued to Ihlas Pazarlama A.Ş. 1.250.030 212.046

Interest invoice issued to Ihlas Gazetecilik A.Ş. 29.399 -

Interest invoice issued to Ihlas Fuar A.Ş. 19.829 5.889

Interest invoice issued to Ihlas Finans Kurumu A.Ş. (in liquidation) 1.485 1.777

Interest invoice issued to Iletişim Magazin Gazetecilik A.Ş. 1.431 -

Promaş Pro. Medya Rek. ve Film Paz. Hiz. A.Ş.'ye kesilen faiz faturası 1.028 607

Interest invoice issued to Ihlas Net A.Ş. 981 -

Interest invoice issued to Ihlas Iletişim Hizmetleri A.Ş. 959 285

İhlas Net Ltd. Şti'ye kesilen faiz faturası 472 -

Interest invoice issued to Ihlas Gelişim Yayıncılık A.Ş. 167 49

Interest invoice received from Ihlas Holding A.Ş. 3.467 4.889

Interest invoice received from Ihlas Gazetecilik A.Ş. 1.855 36.901

Interest invoice received from Ihlas Pazarlama Yatırım Holding A.Ş. 1.690 -

Interest invoice received from Şifa Yemek ve Gıda Üretim Tes. Tic. A.Ş. 375 -
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Rent Invoices Issued and Received
Jan 1 - Dec 31, 

2012
Jan 1 - Dec 31, 

2011

Rent invoices issued to Ihlas Gazetecilik A.Ş. 830.058 629.125

Rent invoices issued to Ihlas Haber Ajansı A.Ş. 254.280 224.371

Rent invoices issued to Ihlas Fuar A.Ş. 121.376 98.175

Rent invoices issued to Ihlas Pazarlama A.Ş. 84.108 116.552

Rent invoices issued to Ihlas Finans Kurumu A.Ş. (in liquidation) 26.175 30.250

Rent invoices issued to Ihlas Holding A.Ş. 26.016 15.304

Rent invoices issued to Iletişim Magazin Gazetecilik A.Ş. 20.399 -

Rent invoices issued to Ihlas Net A.Ş. 20.196 -

Rent invoices issued to Ihlas Iletişim Hizmetleri A.Ş. 7.140 5.575

Rent invoices issued to Ihlas Net Ltd. Şti 3.570 -

Rent invoices issued to Promaş Pro. Medya Rek. ve Film Paz. Hiz. A.Ş. 2.482 13.675

Rent invoices issued to Ihlas Gelişim Yayıncılık A.Ş. 1.020 825

Rent invoices received to Şifa Yemek ve Gıda Üretim Tesisleri Tic. A.Ş. 748 -

Rent invoices issued to Ihlas Enerji A.Ş. - 2.244

Rent invoices issued to Detes Maden Ltd. - 2.244

Rent invoices received to KPT Lojistik Taşımacılık Tur. Rek. Paz. Iç ve Dış Tic. A.Ş. 86.420 -

Rent invoices received from Ihlas Holding A.Ş. 21.600 1.800

Rent invoices received from Ihlas Gazetecilik A.Ş. 3.768 1.800

Fixed Asset Sales
Jan 1 - Dec 31, 

2012
Jan 1 - Dec 31, 

2011

Ihlas Pazarlama A.Ş. 19.000.000 -

Fixed Asset Purchases
Jan 1 - Dec 31, 

2012
Jan 1 - Dec 31, 

2011

Ihlas Pazarlama A.Ş. - 21.000.000

Note 38 – Financial Instrument Risk Levels and Configurations
As of December 31, 2012, and December 31, 2011, the book values of financial assets and liabilities denominated in 

foreign currencies before consolidation adjustments are shown below:

    31.12.2012    31.12.2011

A. Assets in foreign currency 9.729.597 13.274.103

B. Liabilities in foreign currency 27.339.780 36.466.663

Net foreign exchange position (A-B) (17.610.183) (23.192.560)
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TABLE OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE POSITION
31.12.2012

TL Equivalent USD EURO CHF GBP SEK

1. Trade Receivables 642.235 96.733 199.770 - -  -

2a. Monetary Financial Assets 6.874 1.892 1.489 - -  -

2b. Non-Monetary Financial Assets - - - - -  -

3. Other 9.080.488 1.204.084 2.948.543 - -  -

4. Current Assets (1+2+3) 9.729.597 1.302.709 3.149.802 - -  -

5. Trade Receivables - - - - - -

6a, Monetary Financial Assets - - - - - -

6b. Non-Monetary Financial Assets - - - - - -

7. Other - -  - - -  -

8. Fixed Assets (5+6+7) - -  - - -  -

9. Total Assets (4+8) 9.729.597 1.302.709 3.149.802 - -  -

10. Trade Payables 26.840.621 1.115.280 10.567.897 - -  -

11. Financial Liabilities - - - -  -  -

12a. Monetary Other Liabilities - -  - - -  -

12b. Non-Monetary Other Liabilities 499.159 280.017 - - -  -

13. Short-Term Liabilities (10+11+12) 27.339.780 1.395.297 10.567.897 - -  -

14. Trade Payables - -  - - -  -

15. Financial Liabilities - -  - - -  -

16a. Monetary Other Liabilities - -  - - -  -

16b. Non-Monetary Other Liabilities - -  - - -  -

17. Long-Term Liabilities (14+15+16) - - - - -  -

18. Total Liabilities (13+17) 27.339.780 1.395.297 10.567.897 - -  -

19. Net assets/(liabilities) position of off balance sheet deriSales Tax 
(KDV)ive instruments (19a-19b)

- -  - - -  -

19a. Total hedged assets - -  - - -  -

19b. Total hedged liabilities - -  - - -  -

20. Net foreign currency assets/(liabilities) position (9-18+19) (17.610.183) (92.588) (7.418.095) - -  -

21. Net assets/(liabilities) position of monetary Items
(1+2a+5+6a-10-11-12a-14-15-16a)

(26.191.512) (1.016.655) (10.366.638) - -  -

22. Total fair value of financial Instruments used for foreign exchange 
hedge

- -  - - -  -

23. Hedged foreign exchange assets - -  - - -  -

24. Hedged foreign exchange liabilities - -  - - -  -

25. Export 17.423.336 6.091.306 2.827.597 - - -

26. Import 33.036.895 4.166.746 11.158.270 - - -
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TABLE OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE POSITION
31.12.2011

TL Equivalent USD EURO CHF GBP SEK

1. Trade Receivables 445.029 46.469 146.187 - -  -

2a. Monetary Financial Assets 1.354 687 23 - -  -

2b. Non-Monetary Financial Assets - - - - -  -

3. Other 12.827.720 527.053 4.841.710 - -  -

4. Current Assets (1+2+3) 13.274.103 574.209 4.987.920 - -  -

5. Trade Receivables - - - - - -

6a. Monetary Financial Assets - - - - - -

6b. Non-Monetary Financial Assets - - - - - -

7. Other - -  - - -  -

8. Fixed Assets (5+6+7) - -  - - -  -

9. Total Assets (4+8) 13.274.103 574.209 4.987.920 - -  -

10, Trade Payables 36.398.362 3.845.155 11.921.903 250 -  -

11. Financial Liabilities 1.759 - 720 -  -  -

12a. Monetary Other Liabilities - -  - - -  -

12b. Non-Monetary Other Liabilities 66.542 35.228 - - -  -

13. Short-Term Liabilities (10+11+12) 36.466.663 3.880.383 11.922.623 250 -  -

14. Trade Payables - -  - - -  -

15. Financial Liabilities - -  - - -  -

16a. Monetary Other Liabilities - -  - - -  -

16b. Non-Monetary Other Liabilities - -  - - -  -

17. Long-Term Liabilities (14+15+16) - - - - -  -

18. Total Liabilities (13+17) 36.466.663 3.880.383 11.922.623 250 -  -

19. Net assets/(liabilities) position of off balance sheet deriSales Tax 
(KDV)ive instruments (19a-19b)

- -  - - -  -

19a. Total hedged assets - -  - - -  -

19b. Total hedged liabilities - -  - - -  -

20. Net foreign currency assets/(liabilities) position (9-18+19) (23.192.560) (3.306.174) (6.934.703) (250) -  -

21. Net assets/(liabilities) position of monetary Items
(1+2a+5+6a-10-11-12a-14-15-16a)

(35.953.738) (3.797.999) (11.776.413) (250) -  -

22. Total fair value of financial Instruments used for foreign exchange 
hedge

- -  - - -  -

23. Hedged foreign exchange assets - -  - - -  -

24. Hedged foreign exchange liabilities - -  - - -  -

25. Export 14.034.341 4.783.950 2.587.019 - - -

26. Import 33.348.523 2.555.448 12.575.237 - - -
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As of December 31, 2012, and December 31, 2011, the rate of hedging the total foreign currency liability arising from total imports 
is the coverage rate of the total currency exchange liability by a deriSales Tax (KDV)ive instrument. Since the Group has no forward 
transactions, the rate of total foreign currency liability hedging was nil.

Note 39 – Financial Instruments
a) Capital Risk Management  
In capital management, the Group aims to increase its profits and market value by efficiently balancing debt and equity, while con-
tinuing to sustain operations.
The Group’s capital structure is composed of liabilities to include the loans received as explained in Note 8 and equity to include 
issued capital, capital reserves, restricted profit reserves, and previous years’ profits and losses as detailed in Note 27. 
The Group’s capital costs and risks associated with each capital class are evaluated by the Company’s executive management. 
During these analyses, the executive management evaluates the risks associated with each class of capital as well as the capital 
costs and presents the risks requiring a board decision to the Board of Directors. The Group aims to diversify its capital structure 
optimally based on management and under the guidance of the Board of Directors as well as through taking advantage of sourcing 
alternatives in new liabilities, debt reduction, or capital increases. The Group’s new overall strategy differs somewhat from the pre-
vious years.
The Group monitors capital adequacy through the net liability/equity ratio. This ratio is calculated by dividing net liability by total eq-
uity. Net liability is calculated by subtracting cash and cash equivalents from the total liability to include short and long-term debt, 
trade, and other payables reported on the balance sheet.

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Total Liabilities 86.095.999 82.347.705

Less: cash and cash equivalent assets (Note 6) (1.533.382) (470.744)

Net Liabilities 84.562.617 81.876.961

Total Equity (Note 27) 218.126.699 203.455.110

Ratio of Net Liabilities/Equity 39% 40%

b) Material Accounting Policies 
The Group’s material accounting policies for financial instruments are shown in “Financial Assets” under Note 2 (D), “Summary of 
Material Accounting Policies”.

c) Financial Risk Management Goals  
Currently, no risk management model or an active implementation exists for the Group as a whole. Foreign exchange, interest and 
liquidity risks are among the Group’s significant financial risks.
Although no set risk management model is currently used, the Group maintains control over risks through management assess-
ments and practices. The Group aims to establish a corporate risk management model; the efforts to achieve this goal are ongoing.

d) Market Risk  
The Group is exposed to financial risks due to operations related to fluctuations in foreign exchange rates (paragraph E below) and 
interest rates (paragraph F below). The Company’s management monitors income and expense breakdowns by foreign currency and 
liabilities by foreign currency and fixed and variable interest rates. 
The Company is exposed to pricing risks because price fluctuations in raw material inventories affect sales prices. Currently, there 
are no deriSales Tax (KDV)ive instruments that hedge against adverse price changes on sales margins. The Company reviews the 
balances on purchase orders, production and procurement according to raw material pricing outlooks and makes an effort to reflect 
fluctuations in raw material prices to sales prices.
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Management of Exchange Rate Risk:
There is a natural balance between the Group’s income and expenses in terms of exchange rate risk; this balance is sustained by 
taking into account forecasts and market conditions. 
The sensitivity analysis for exchange rate risk of the Company’s foreign exchange position is discussed below.
As of December 31, 2012, if the Turkish lira rates were lowered by 10 percent against both the dollar and euro while all other vari-
ables remained constant, a net interest income would have occurred due to net translation gains on assets and liabilities denomi-
nated in these foreign currencies. The net interest income before taxes for the reporting period would have decreased by 1,761,018 
Turkish lira (December 31, 2011: less net year-end profit of 2,319,256 Turkish lira). The Group’s hedging of exchange risk and foreign 
currency liability is discussed in Note 38. 

 
 

Exchange Rate Sensitivity Table
 

31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Profit/(Loss) Profit/(Loss)

Appreciation of 
foreign currency

Depreciation of 
foreign currency

Appreciation of 
foreign currency

Depreciation of 
foreign currency

10% change in USD rate

1- USD net assets/(liabilities) (16.505) 16.505 (624.503) 624.503

2- USD rate protected portion (-) 0  0  0  0 

3- USD net effect (1+2) (16.505) 16.505 (624.503) 624.503

10% change in EUR rate:

4- EUR net assets/(liabilities) (1.744.513) 1.744.513 (1.694.703) 1.694.703

5- EUR rate protected portion (-) 0  0  0  0 

6- EUR net effect (4+5) (1.744.513) 1.744.513 (1.694.703) 1.694.703

10% change in other exchange rates:

7- Other foreign exchange net assets/(liabilities) 0 0 (50) 50

8- Other exchange rate protected portion (-) 0 0 0 0

9- Other foreign exchange assets net effect (7+8) 0 0 (50) 50

TOTAL (3+6+9) (1.761.018) 1.761.018 (2.319.256) 2.319.256
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Management of Interest Rate Risk:
The Group borrows on afixed interest rate basis. The Group’sinterest rates for liabilities are discussed in detail in Notes 6, 7, and 8.

Interest Position Table

  31.12.2012 31.12.2011

Fixed Rate Financial Instruments    

Financial Assets
Financial assets with fair value difference not reflected in profit/loss 572.225 27.606

Ready-to-sell Financial Assets 1.470.663 1.364.959

Financial Liabilities - 61.377

Variable Interest Financial Instruments    

Financial Assets - -

Financial Liabilities 39.342.259 28.899.098

As of December 31, 2012, if the base interest rate increased by 100 points or 1 percent while all other variables remained constant, 
no net interest income would occur due to modifications in interest amounts related to fixed and variable rate financial instruments 
and net profit for the period before taxes would not be changed. (December 31, 2011: net profit for the period before taxes would not 
be changed.)

e) Management of Credit and Collection Risk  
The Group’s credit and collection risk is mainly related to trade receivables. The amount shown on the balance sheet is the net 
amount after deducting doubtful receivables determined by the Group’s management based on prior experience and current eco-
nomic conditions. The Group does not have a significant credit risk concentration as the Group’s credit risk is diversified given the 
wide customer base of the distributor company. Furthermore, the Group manages risk effectively by taking collaterals to secure 
trade receivables through the distributor company.
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Credit Risk Exposure by Types of Financial Instruments:

31.12.2012

 

Receivables

Bank Deposits
DeriSales 

Tax (KDV)ive 
Instruments

OtherCommercial Receivables Other Receivables

Related Party Other Party Related Party Other Party

Maximum credit exposure as of the reporting date 
(A+B+C+D+E) (1)

13.951.131 49.793.320 12.094.803 493.890 840.542 - 87.951.825

Secured portion of maximum exposure by collaterals, etc. 17.826.000 - - - - - -

A. Net book value of financial assets that are non-past due 
or unimpaired (2) 13.951.131 49.793.320 12.094.803 493.890 840.542 - 692.840

B. Book value of renegotiated financial assets that are 
considered past due or impaired

- - - - - - -

C. Net book value of past due but unimpaired assets (3) - - - - - - -

- Secured portion of net book value by collaterals, etc. - - - - - - -

D. Net book value of impaired assets (4) - - - - - - 87.258.985 (*)

- Past due (gross book value) 1.377 5.051.840 - 28.845 - - -

- Impairment (-) (1.377) (5.051.840) - (28.845) - - -

- Secured portion of net book value by collaterals, etc. - - - - - - -

- Non-past due (gross book value) - - - - - - 71.135.037

- Impairment/Appraisal (-) - - - - - - 16.123.948

- Secured portion of net book value by collaterals, etc. - - - - - - -

E. Items with off balance sheet credit risk - - - - - - -

(*) This amount is stocks related, with details shown in Note 7. 
(1) Credibility enhancing factors like collaterals are not taken into account when determining the amount.
(2) No future impairment or credit risks are anticipated on the non-past due or unimpaired financial assets.
(3) No future impairment is anticipated on the past due but unimpaired financial assets since their collaterals or maturities are short.
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As of December 31, 2012, the aging analysis of past due but unimpaired financial assets is shown below.

Receivables

Bank Deposits
DeriSales 

Tax (KDV)ive 
Instruments

OtherCommercial 
Receivables

Other
Receivables

Past due for 1-30 days - - - - -

Past due for 1-3 months - - - - -

Past due for 3-12 months - - - - -

Past due for 1-5 years - - - - -

Past due for more than 5 years - - - - -

Portion secured by collaterals, etc - - - - -

(4) As of December 31, 2012, the aging analysis of past due and impaired financial assets is shown below:

Receivables

Past Due Amount Provisions

Past due for 1-30 days Set Aside -

Past due for 1-3 months - -

Past due for 3-12 months - -

Past due for 1-5 years 5.082.062       (5.082.062)

Past due for more than 5 years - -

TOTAL 5.082.062      (5.082.062)

Portion secured by collaterals, etc - -

There are several ways a receivable may be evaluated as doubtful: a) doubtful receivables from previous years; b) the debtor’s ability 
to pay; and/or c) extraordinary conditions in the industry and in the economy.
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31.12.2011

Receivables

Bank Deposits
DeriSales 

Tax (KDV)ive 
Instruments

OtherCommercial Receivables Other Receivables

Related Party Other Party Related Party Other Party

Maximum credit exposure as of the reporting date 

(A+B+C+D+E) (1) 2.947.757 60.860.799 - 1.130.371 357.642 - 43.744.460

Secured portion of maximum exposure by collaterals, etc. 18.890.000 - - - - - -

A. Net book value of financial assets that are non-
past due or unimpaired (2) 2.947.757 60.860.799 - 1.130.371 357.642 - 113.102

B. Book value of renegotiated financial assets that are 
considered past due or impaired

- - - - - - -

C. Net book value of past due but unimpaired assets (3) - - - - - - -

- Secured portion of net book value by collaterals, etc. - - - - - - -

D. Net book value of impaired assets (4) - - - - - - 43.631.358(*)

- Past due (gross book value) - 3.254.340 - 255.054 - - -

- Impairment (-) - (3.254.340) - (255.054) - - -

- Secured portion of net book value by collaterals, etc. - - - - - - -

- Non-past due (gross book value) - - - - - - 58.936.619

- Impairment/Appraisal (-) - - - - - - (15.305.261)

- Secured portion of net book value by collaterals, etc. - - - - - - -

E. Items with off balance sheet credit risk - - - - - - -

(*) This amount is stocks related, with details shown in Note 7.
(1) Credibility enhancing factors like collaterals are not taken into account when determining the amount.
(2) No future impairment or credit risks are anticipated on the non-past due or unimpaired financial assets.
(3) No future impairment is anticipated on the past due but unimpaired financial assets since their collaterals or maturities are short.
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As of December 31, 2011, the aging analysis of past due but unimpaired financial assets is shown below.

Receivables

Bank Deposits
DeriSales 

Tax (KDV)ive 
Instruments

OtherCommercial 
Receivables

Other
Receivables

Past due for 1-30 days - - - - -

Past due for 1-3 months - - - - -

Past due for 3-12 months - - - - -

Past due for 1-5 years - - - - -

Past due for more than 5 years - - - - -

Portion secured by collaterals, etc - - - - -

(4) As of December 31, 2011, the aging analysis of past due and impaired financial assets is shown below:

Receivables

Past Due 
Amount

Provisions
Set Aside

Past due for 1-30 days - -

Past due for 1-3 months - -

Past due for 3-12 months - -

Past due for 1-5 years 3.509.394  (3.509.394)

Past due for more than 5 years - -

TOTAL 3.509.394      (3.509.394)

Portion secured by collaterals, etc - -

There are several ways a receivable may be evaluated as doubtful: a) doubtful receivables from previous years; b) the debtor’s ability 
to pay; and/or c) extraordinary conditions in the industry and in the economy.

f) Liquidity Risk Management   
The Group manages liquidity risk through monitoring estimated and realized cash flow regularly and ensuring sustenance of suffi-
cient funds and borrowing reserves by criticizing maturities of financial assets and liabilities.  

Footnotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Footnotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements as of December 31, 2012

Unless otherwise stated, the amounts are in Turkish lira (TL)

İhlas Ev Aletleri İmalat Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.



İHLAS EV ALETLERİ ANNUAL REPORT 2012131

31.12.2012

Maturities According to Agreement Book Value
Contractual 

Cash Outflows 
Total

Less than 3 
Months

3 to 12 Months 1 to 5 Years

Non-DeriSales Tax (KDV)ive Financial Liabilities 26.847.757 27.370.655 10.172.615 16.591.951 606.089

Bank Loans - - - - -

Financial Leasing Liabilities - - - - -

Trade Payables (*) 23.158.032 23.680.929 8.621.495 15.059.434 -

Other Payables and Liabilities (**) 3.689.725 3.689.726 1.551.120 1.532.517 606.089

Expected Maturities Book Value
Expected Cash 
Outflows Total

Less than 3 
Months

3 to 12 Months 1 to 5 Years

Non-DeriSales Tax (KDV)ive Financial Liabilities 53.037.895 53.650.451 1.305.388 51.564.010 781.053

Bank Loans 39.342.259 39.342.259 547.658 38.794.601 -

Financial Leasing Liabilities - - - - -

Trade Payables (***) 10.955.471 11.536.876 - 11.536.876 -

Other Payables and Liabilities 2.740.165 2.771.316 757.730 1.232.533 781.053

Expected (or Contractual) Maturities Book Value
Contractual or 
Expected Cash 
Outflows Total

Less than 3 
Months

3 to 12 Months 1 to 5 Years

DeriSales Tax (KDV)ive Cash Inflows - - - - -

DeriSales Tax (KDV)ive Cash Outflows - - - - -

(*) Since Turkish Commercial Code considers promissory notes as contracts linking two parties, payables related promissory notes 
are monitored in this group; intra-company eliminations within the group are taken into account according to their book values.
(**) Liabilities with legally binding due dates, such as tax provisions, deferred taxes, tax due, and social security deductions, are ac-
counted for in this group.
(***) Suppliers and other trade payables are monitored in this group; intra-company eliminations within the group are taken into ac-
count according to their book values.
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31.12.2011

Contractual Maturities Book Value
Contractual 

Cash Outflows 
Total

Less than 3 
Months

3 to 12 Months 1 to 5 Years

Non-DeriSales Tax (KDV)ive Financial Liabilities 32.981.527 33.067.295 10.482.601 20.238.288 2.346.406

Bank Loans 59.618 59.618 59.618 - -

Financial Leasing Liabilities 1.759 1.759 1.759 - -

Trade Payables (*) 27.069.912 27.155.680 9.404.618 17.751.062 -

Other Payables and Liabilities (**) 5.850.238 5.850.238 1.016.606 2.487.226 2.346.406

Expected Maturities Book Value
Expected Cash 
Outflows Total

Less than 3 
Months

3 to12 Months 1 to 5 Years

Non-DeriSales Tax (KDV)ive Financial Liabilities 45.592.156 45.594.835 703.150 43.826.101 1.065.584

Bank Loans 28.899.098 28.899.098 - 28.899.098 -

Financial Leasing Liabilities - - - - -

Trade Payables (***) 14.926.490 14.926.490 - 14.926.490 -

Other Payables and Liabilities 1.766.568 1.769.247 703.150 513 1.065.584

Expected (or Contractual) Maturities Book Value
Contractual or 
Expected Cash 
Outflows Total

Less than 3 
Months

3 to12 Months 1 to 5 Years

DeriSales Tax (KDV)ive Cash Inflows - - - - -

DeriSales Tax (KDV)ive Cash Outflows - - - - -

(*) Since Turkish Commercial Code considers promissory notes as contracts linking two parties, payables related promissory notes 
are monitored in this group; intra-company eliminations within the group are taken into account according to their book values.
(**) Liabilities with legally binding due dates, such as tax provisions, deferred taxes, tax due, and social security deductions, are ac-
counted for in this group.
(***) Suppliers and other trade payables are monitored in this group; intra-company eliminations within the group are taken into ac-
count according to their book values.

g) Hedge Accounting
The Company does not have any transactions for hedging other than options transactions and exchange risk management. The 
Group does not perform swap transactions for purposes of hedging from exchange or interest rates (fixed or variable).
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Note 40 –Events After the Reporting Period
Applying to the Capital Markets Board to amend the Articles of Association 
With the Board of Directors decision no 02 dated February 13, 2013, the Company has applied to the Capital Markets Board on Feb-
ruary 14, 2013 to amend the following articles of its Articles of Association in order to comply with the Turkish Commercial Code 
no 6102: 3. (Purpose and Subject), 4. (Company Headquarters and Branches), 6. (Description of Capital and Shares), 8. (Transfer 
of Stocks), 9. (Privileges), 11. (Board of Directors Meetings and Meeting and Decision Quorums), 12. (Duties, Representation, and 
Binding Rights of the Board of Directors), 14. (Auditors), 15. (Duties of Auditors), 16. (Remuneration of Auditors), 19. (Having a Com-
missioner Present at the Assembly), 23. (Proxy Appointment), 25. (Use of Votes), 27. (Annual Reports), 29. (Distribution of Profits), 31. 
(Reserve Funds), and 33. (Legal Provisions). 
Upon the approval of this application, the latest status regarding privileges will be as follows: 
The Company’s shareholders elect three, four, five, or six of the Members of the Board of Directors, depending on whether the Board 
consists of five, seven, nine, or eleven members, respectively, from the candidates nominated by shareholders from group (A). If the 
amendment of the Articles of Association violates the rights of privileged shareholders, then the General Assembly decision needs 
to be approved by the board of privileged shareholders.
Approval of the Financial Statements
The Board of Directors approved the financial statements dated December 31, 2012 and authorized their publication on March 7, 
2013. Only the General Assembly is authorized to adjust the financial statements once published by the Group shareholders or other 
related parties.
Changes in the Indirect Shareholder Structure
Due to the death of the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the Company’s Parent, Ihlas Holding A.Ş., the indirect shareholder 
structure has changed after the date of the balance sheet. However, as of the date of the report, the new shareholder structure has 
not yet been clarified. 
Changes in the Members of the Board of Directors
There has been a change in the Board of Directors members in the Company and in Ihlas Madencilik A.Ş. of the Group.

Note 41 - Miscellaneous Items for Clarifying and Explaining the Financial Statements and Items 
that Significantly Affect the Financial Statements
Reclassification:
Because some of the costs calculated under the cost of sales in the comprehensive income statement have been reclassified and 
reported under other operational costs, the Company’s comprehensive income statements for previous year has been reclassified. 
This reclassification is limited to the details shown below.

Reclassified Items
Before

reclassification Amount
reclassified

After
Reclassification

01.01-
31.12.2011

01.01-
31.12.2011

   Cost of Sales (93.472.078) 664.234 (92.807.844)

   Other Operating Costs (33.693.696) (664.234) (34.357.930)
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